
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Monday, 9th March, 2020
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1  Apologies 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  Minutes 4 - 6

Members are requested to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 
8 January 2020

3  Declarations of Interest 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

4  Urgent Items of Business 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5  Items for Exclusion of Public and Press 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

Public Document Pack



6  Council Size Report for the Electoral Review of Rochdale 7 - 73

To consider the attached report submitted by the Electoral Review 
Member Steering Group

7  External Audit Strategy Memorandum 2020 74 - 92

To consider the attached report from the Council’s external Auditor

8  External Audit Progress Report 93 - 105

To consider the attached report from the Council’s external Auditor

9  Internal Audit Quarter 3 Report 2019/20 106 - 124

To consider the attached report of the Head of Internal Audit

10  Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 125 - 150

To approve the attached report of the Head of Internal Audit 

11  Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2019/20 151 - 164

To consider the attached report of the Risk Manager 

Audit and Governance Committee Members
Councillor Ali Ahmed Craig Ainsworth
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Aftab Hussain Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Donna Martin E Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Aasim Rashid Councillor Donna Williams

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Michaqel Garraway
01706 924716
michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 8 January 2020

PRESENT:  Councillors Malcom (Chair); Councillors Sultan, Hussain, Martin, 
Nickson and Williams.

OFFICERS: Ian Corbridge – Head of Internal Audit, Julie Murphy – Chief 
Finance Officer, Martin Nixon – Risk Manager, John Addison – Governance 
and Committee Services

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: K. Murray and D. Watson (Mazars).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor James Gartside and Councillor 
Rashid

28 MINUTES

RESOLVED

That the Minutes held on the 25th September 2019 be approved as a correct 
record.

29 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made.

30 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no items of Urgent Business.

31 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

There were no items under this item.

32 SOCIAL VALUE PRESENTATION FROM LORRAINE COX FROM STAR

The Committee receive a presentation from the Director for STAR on the 
impact the service was having in procuring good and services for the GM 
Authorities that had joined.

It was noted that in 3years the local spend of Council’s through STAR had 
gone from 12% to 43% and this was expected to grow as more local business 
accessed help to equip themselves to bid for business through the STAR 
portal.

It was noted that the social value of using STAR equated to £10.5 million for 
Rochdale or 21pence of every pound spent by the Council.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Members acknowledged the increase of 12-43% of Council’s commissioned 
spend as excellent news.

RESOLVED

That the presentation be noted.

33 2019-20 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee received a progress report from the Council’s external 
auditors, noting that the focus of their work had been around planning and 
preparation for the upcoming audit process.

It was noted that the Audit Plan for the forthcoming year would be presented 
to the next meeting of the Audit and Governanace Committee.

RESOLVED: 

That the report be noted.

34 2018-19 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER

The Council's External Auditors provided a summary to Members of the 
Committee of the Annual Audit Letter, which summarised the key findings 
arising from the work carried out at the Council for the year ended 31st March 
2019.

An unqualified opinion had been given on the Council’s financial statements 
on 31st July 2019. In terms of Value for Money, Grant Thornton were satisfied 
that the Council had proper arrangements in place to ensure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources during the year ended 31st 

March 2019.

RESOLVED

That the Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31st March 2019 be noted.

35 INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 2 REPORT 2019/20

The Head of Internal Audit submitted the second quarter performance report 
detailing progress of the internal audit team in relation to planned audit 
activity. Members noted that Internal Audit was able to provide either 
substantial or adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management 
in all the audits completed during the period. Furthermore, Internal Audit had 
completed 45% of the agreed Audit Plan which achieved the agreed target 
set.

It was noted that on page 42, the Audit into Housing Benefit stated that the 
work had been undertaken by Mazars, this was incorrect and that work had in 
fact been undertaken by the Council’s Internal Audit Team.

Page 4



RESOLVED: 

That the report be noted.

36 RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q2 2019/20

The committee considered the quarter 2 summary on risk management and 
insurance activity during 2019/20. The Risk Manager provided a 
comprehensive report outlining major risk and insurance focussed initiatives 
and associated progress.

The report provided Members with an update on positive risk management 
developments in the Environmental Management service and the latest plans 
to manage priority risks under Integrated Health transformation projects. 

It was noted that the Insurance Team achieved a claims cost mitigation figure 
of £531,964.13 for the quarter. A significant cost saving had been achieved in 
the procurement of a new insurance broker contract, and a fundamental 
dishonesty court judgement in the Council’s favour demonstrated the success 
of the team’s investigations of and subsequent challenge to claims made.

RESOLVED: 

That the report be noted.

Page 5



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 9 March 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources 

Report Author Ben Jorgensen

Public/Private Document Public

Council Size Report for the Electoral Review of Rochdale

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) is 
undertaking a review of Rochdale Borough Council’s (the Council) local 
government electoral arrangements. The outcome of the review will be 
implemented for the 2022 Council elections.

The first part of the review determines the Council size. To help inform the 
LGBCE decision on Rochdale’s Council Size, the council has produced a 
submission for LGBCE, which requests that the Council size remains at twenty 
Wards with three Councillors per Ward.

This recommendation has been made as it is considered that in the future, this 
is needed to ensure Councillors can continue to fulfil their duties in relation to 
community leadership, democratic representation, governance and scrutiny, in 
consideration of the already high levels of case work and the increasing 
demands of partnership working and oversight with the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority and Health and Social Care Integration as well as 
forecasted population growth.

Recommendation

2.1 To recommend that Full Council approves the Council Size Submission to the 
Local Government Boundary Commission for England.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 The Council’s submission is informed by reviewing Councillor’s meeting and 
decision-making commitments, casework loads, community engagement work, 
forecast population growth, engagement with all Councillors and comparisons 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



to other local authorities. The full reasoning for the submission is set out in the 
appended submission document.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) has 
informed the Council of its decision to carry out an Electoral Review of the 
Council size (number of elected Councillors) and the number of wards and 
ward boundaries for the Council.

The LGBCE will be reviewing all Greater Manchester boroughs that haven’t 
had a review since the programme began in the early 2000’s. 

The Council is required to provide, under stage 1 of the Review, a ’Council 
Size Submission’ to the LGBCE. This provides the Council’s view on the 
appropriate council size and relevant supporting evidence based on three 
broad areas.

 Governance and decision making
 Scrutiny functions 
 Representative role of councillors

The Council Size Submission has been led by a cross party member steering 
group consisting of members from each of the two main political parties; 
Labour and Conservative.

The recommendation from the cross party member group is that the Council 
should remain at 60 councillors across 20 wards (3 members per ward).

The submission date for the report and all supporting data to the LGBCE is 
the 27th April 2020. 

Alternatives Considered
No alternatives have been considered as this is a statutory requirement for 
the Council to produce information to the LGBCE in regards to the Councils 
recommended Council size.  

Should Members disagree with the content of the submission any alternative 
proposals must meet the statutory criteria and whose knock-on effect can be 
demonstrated not to prejudice the achievement of the statutory criteria in 
neighbouring areas across the borough.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no financial implications

Page 7



Risk and Policy Implications

Under Section 56 of the Local Democracy, Economic Development and 
Construction Act 2009, the LGBCE must from time to time conduct a review 
of the area of each principal council and recommend whether a change 
should be made to the electoral arrangements for that area. The Council has 
not had an electoral review since 2003.  The Council has a responsibility to 
support the LGBCE in the review and to ensure that our democratic 
arrangements are appropriate for the future needs of the Borough. 

6.

Consultation

7.

7.1

The LGBCE will consider the Council’s recommendations for future council 
size before publishing their own final recommendations which the Council will 
be required to adopt. 

Following this there will be a consultation period from June to August 2020 
which will be jointly facilitated by the Council and LGBCE in regards to the 
future ward boundaries of Rochdale borough.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Council Size Submission Template 
from the LGBCE

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen
Data Innovation and Intelligence 
Manager
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 8



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

1

Electoral Review of Rochdale Borough Council
Submission on Council Size

Introduction

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) has informed 
Rochdale Borough Council of its decision to carry out an Electoral Review of the 
Council size (number of elected Councillors) and the number of wards and ward 
boundaries for the Council.

Rochdale Council has not had an electoral review since 2003. It will have been 19 
years since the current boundaries were set by the time this review’s 
recommendations are in place. The LGBCE believes this is a reasonable 
interpretation of Section 56 of the Local Democracy, Economic Development and 
Construction Act 2009.

This review began in July 2019; any changes that are made in regards to council 
size and ward boundaries will come into effect for the local government elections 
in May 2022. 

Section 56 states that electoral arrangements of a principal local authority’s area 
should be reviewed ‘from time to time’. The LGBCE will be reviewing all Greater 
Manchester boroughs that haven’t had a review since the programme began in the 
early 2000s.

At present there are wards with electoral imbalances across the borough of 
Rochdale; therefore providing an unfair representation at local government 
elections. In two wards the size of the electorate has a variance of greater than +/- 
10% in comparison to the average (Kingsway 11% and West Middleton 14%)

This document is Rochdale Borough Council’s council size submission, which 
provides the LGBCE with the Council’s view on the appropriate council size and 
supporting evidence across the following three broad areas (as stated in the 
LGBCE guidance on council size for local authority elected members and staff):

 Governance and decision making – determining the role of 
councillors in decision making, and how work and responsibilities 
are distributed across the Council.

Page 9



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

2

1.6

 Scrutiny functions – the role of councillors in holding decision 
makers to account and to ensure that the Council can 
discharge its responsibilities to outside bodies.

 Representative role of councillors – assessing how councillors 
represent and provide leadership in their communities and how 
this affects workload and responsibilities.

The document concludes that the size of the Council should remain at 60 
councillors across 20 wards (3 members per ward).

Methodology

2.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

The council size submission has been led by a cross party steering group consisting 
of members from each of the main two political parties; Labour and Conservative.

The submission draws on information from a variety of sources such as Rochdale 
Borough Council’s constitution and discussions with elected members and senior 
officers.

Additionally, councillors were asked to complete a survey in order to better 
understand their workloads relating to governance and decision making, scrutiny, 
and the representative duties of councillors. The survey also sought to understand 
the way councillors work with residents and partner organisations as well as 
creating a better overall understanding of the role of a councillor in Rochdale.

As part of the councillor survey, councillors were asked how their roles have 
developed and changed over time in particular relation to the emergence of the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority and devolution of powers to Greater 
Manchester.

85% of councillors (51) completed the survey. 95% of labour councillors completed 
the survey.

Rochdale Borough Profile

3. Rochdale is a strategically located borough on the M62, 10 miles north of 
Manchester City Centre, has main line rail services and is part of the Greater 
Manchester metrolink tram service. Two thirds of the borough is green open space, 
and there are four town centres each with their own identity. The borough is home 
to 8000 businesses with good examples of very successful home grown enterprises 
such as Zen Internet, a multi-award winning internet service provider employing 
over 400 staff. Rochdale has also attracted international companies with several 
being located on the 450 acre Kingsway Business Park.

Page 10



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

3

3.1 Rochdale Town Centre has recently benefitted from an unprecedented level of 
investment, with a £250m regeneration programme almost complete. This first 
phase of regeneration included the Rochdale Sixth Form College, which has been 
ranked top in the UK for value added performance for the fifth year. Other 
completed projects included; Number One Riverside, the re-opening of the River 
Roch, improvements to the Rochdale campus of Hopwood Hall College, a new 
transport interchange and Metrolink, and a new leisure and sports centre.  

3.2 Phase 2 is now underway with a £80m new leisure and retail development, £25m for 
town centre heritage projects and a further £17m for the magnificent Grade 1 Town 
Hall.  A first of its kind business rate incentive scheme has attracted new 
independent retailers to vacant units in the three main town centres.

3.3 Rochdale’s growth is now being planned for the next 10 years and major projects are 
being developed to bring more jobs to the borough, many new homes and improved 
transport and digital infrastructure.  Business growth and investment activities are 
focused on attracting quality jobs and higher wage rates. 

3.4 Rochdale Development Agency (RDA) was established in 1993 and is now a council-
controlled company that delivers physical regeneration, heritage and business 
support initiatives on behalf of the council. The council and RDA work closely with 
the Business Growth Hub to ensure all borough businesses have access to finance, 
international trade advice and many other growth services.

3.5 It is expected that Rochdale will continue to see economic and physical 
transformation over the forthcoming years. Over the next six years, growth is 
expected to result in an additional 11,296 residents, an estimated growth of 5.1%.

3.6 Rochdale has a lower rate of economic activity for those in employment, in 
comparison with other local authorities in Greater Manchester for the year ending 
December 2018. In contrast the percentage increase of economic activity over the 
three year period 2016 to 2018 is the highest in Greater Manchester at 13.8%. This 
highlights that over time Rochdale is one of the most rapidly increasing economies in 
Greater Manchester. The number of active enterprises has steadily grown over the 
last three years rising to the current figure of 8,255 from 7,120 in 2016. This is an 
increase of 15% over the three year period 2016-18; the highest increase in Greater 
Manchester.

3.6 Despite continued growth and success coupled with the transformation of the 
town’s physical and economic future, Rochdale remains a town of contrast. Rochdale 
is ranked the 15th most deprived borough in England (out of 326) based on a rank of 
the average deprivation scores for the local super output areas (LSOAs) in the area 
from the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2019. 20 of the town’s lower super output 
areas are in the most deprived 10% LSOAs nationally. Deprivation is concentrated in 
wards which cover Central Rochdale, West Middleton and Milkstone & Deeplish. Life 
expectancy for both men and women remains lower than both Greater Manchester 

Page 11



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

4

and national figures. Childhood obesity has increased over the last five years in both 
reception and year six pupils and despite recent improvements, around a fifth of 
children in Rochdale are growing up in poverty.

 

3.7 The Council has realised that going forward there needs to be a focus in continuing 
to deliver services coupled with making improvements to the local area. Whilst at 
the same time managing outcomes against ongoing financial difficulties and the 
inequalities experienced by some residents of the borough. 

3.8 There is an added focus within the borough on active local leadership as well as 
working closer with partners in order to achieve our outcomes and meet our 
strategic aims. This is encapsulated by the strategic ways of working set out in the 
Council’s Corporate Plan:

 Co-operation
 Strengthening Community Assets
 Prevention and intervention
 Collective Change

Page 12



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

5

 Integrated and Local working

3.9 Delivering against these core strategies requires sustained commitment and 
partnership between councillors, partners in the private, public and voluntary 
sectors as well as residents of Rochdale.

3.10 At the same time, councillors are operating in an increasingly complex 
environment. The election of the Greater Manchester Mayor and increased 
devolution of responsibilities to Greater Manchester, and the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority, is fundamentally changing the way the council works in areas 
of economic development, transport, work and skills, planning, policing and health 
and social care.

3.11 The influence and remit of councillors as leaders of place and representatives of 
their communities is fundamentally changing – creating wider influence and 
responsibilities.

Page 13



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

6

Population Growth

4. The last council size for Rochdale was calculated in 2004. In the last fifteen years the 
population has grown within the borough significantly. The population of Rochdale 
has increased from 211,699 to 220,001 over that time period; a growth of 3.8%. This 
is lower than the England rate of 5.1%, and the 5th highest rate of growth in Greater 
Manchester over the same time period (ONS Mid-Year Estimates). The growth in 
population reflects the success of the Council’s ambition to attract investment, grow 
new business opportunities, and to create jobs.

4.1 The electorate size has also grown, with 167,097 electors in February 2020, 
compared with 160,410 in 2014. This is a growth of 4%.

4.2 Population has grown across all areas of the borough; in particular the highest 
growth has been concentrated in wards that adjoin the regional centre and in 
surrounding areas. West Middleton has seen a 10.4% increase in its population 
between 2011 and 2019, increasing from 11,423 to 12,614 residents. Kingsway has 
seen an 8.4% increase in its population between 2011 and 2019, increasing from 
11998 to 13001 residents.

 

Page 14



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

7

Continuing Population Growth

5. Detailed forecasts have been conducted by analysts at Rochdale Borough Council 
that highlight that between 2019 and 2026 the adult population in the borough is set 
to grow by around 11,296 people; an estimated percentage increase of 5.1%.

5.1 The electorate is estimated to grow by 8,226 people; an estimated percentage 
increase of 4.9% by 2026.

5.2 The majority of forecasted electorate growth will be focused in West Middleton, 
Balderstone & Kirkholt and Milkstone & Deeplish. With there being an estimated 
electorate increase of 9648 to 11837 residents in West Middleton alone.

5.3 The growth forecasts developed incorporate past and current demographic trends, 
as well as considering all of the known housing developments and future 
demolitions. Formulas provided by the LGBCE were also considered in the 
forecasting development methodology.

Page 15



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

8

5.4 At the start of the electoral review the LGBCE provided data regarding the current 
electoral imbalance across Rochdale. Two wards had an electorate variance greater 
than +/- 10% in comparison with the average (Kingsway 11% and West Middleton 
14%). This is highlighted in the map below.

5.5 The increase in forecasted electorate is based on demographic changes as well as 
future housing developments and planning within the borough. In particular there is 
a large amount of housing being developed at sites in the West Middleton ward. In 
contrast, for the forecasted 6 year period, the majority of demolitions that occur 
within the borough are isolated to the Central Rochdale ward. Below a map shows 
the forecasted electoral imbalance as of 2026.

Page 16



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

9
Page 17



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

10

Rochdale Borough Profile (Part 2)

6. The population of the borough of Rochdale is younger in comparison to England and 
Wales. In 2018, the Office of National Statistics (ONS) estimated 2.4 percent more 
people were aged 16 and under across the borough than in comparison to national. 
There are also fewer older people aged 65 and over (2% fewer) than nationally. 
However, Rochdale has a greater proportion of older people than the rest of Greater 
Manchester but far fewer younger adults aged 20 to 44.

6.1 Since the last boundary review in 2004, the overall population has increased with the 
older population experiencing the largest rise, by 2.1% (6,500 more people aged 65 
and over). The number of young people is still on the rise, however, residents aged 
16 to 19 has reduced by 2,000 over the past 14 years.

6.2 There are variations in age break down of individual wards within the borough. The 
table below highlights the disparity between the different age groups. The darker 
green highlights where the population by ward for that age group is larger than in 
comparison to other wards in Rochdale. There are noticeably older age groups in 
Bamford and South Middleton.

6.3 18.3% of the population of Rochdale are from a BAME background in accordance 
with the 2011 census; this compares nationally to 14%. The distribution of the BAME 
population across wards in Rochdale is varied with Central Rochdale (61.1%) and 
Milkstone & Deeplish (75.7%) having high proportions of people from a BAME 
background. This is in comparison to wards with lower proportions such as 
Littleborough Lakeside (2.2%) and Milnrow & Newhey (2.8%).

Page 18



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

11

6.4 In Rochdale, life expectancy had been increasing in both men and women and has 
now levelled off. As of 2016 for males life expectancy is 77.1 years and for females it 
is 80.6. This is similar to Oldham but lower than the North West, Greater 
Manchester, and England.

6.5 In 2018, there were 2,011 deaths in Rochdale of which 815 were in people under 75. 
Compared to England as a whole, in Rochdale borough, more people die before they 
reach 75. In the borough between 2016 and 2018 the directly standardised mortality 

Page 19



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

12

rate for deaths under 75 was 441 per 100,000. In England it was 330. This indicates 
that when differences in the age structure of England and Rochdale are taken into 
consideration there are around 33.6% more premature deaths in Rochdale than in 
the rest of England. Levels of disability and poor health are high in Rochdale. Over 1 
in 10 people report that their ‘day-to-day activities are limited a lot’, which is higher 
than the national level. Almost 8% of people report bad or very bad health which is 
again higher than the national average of 5.5%. West Middleton, Smallbridge and 
Firgrove and Central Rochdale have the highest levels of disability and poor health. 
Norden, Wardle & West Littleborough and Bamford have the lowest levels.

6.6 Communities in Rochdale are diverse from ward to ward. There are well established 
Kashmiri and Pakistani communities in some central wards which have increased 
considerably in population over the last ten years.

6.7 Rochdale borough residents practice a range of different religions. The most 
common religions in the borough are Christianity and Islam followed by Buddhism, 
Hinduism, Judaism and Sikhism. In the 2011 census, over 75% of Rochdale borough 
residents said they have a type of religious belief

6.8 Some wards in Rochdale have a low percentage of all people within households 
where English is the main language. In particular this is concentrated in Milkstone & 
Deeplish (50.5%), Central Rochdale (64.2%) and Kingsway (79.6%). 

6.9 Rochdale is diverse in its ward make up as there are different communities, ethnic 
backgrounds and languages spoken which attribute to a variation, ward to ward, in 
the different required demands of the community and therefore the councillors. 
Diversity, different cultures and an understanding of a communities needs brings 
challenges to the council, and so councillors are required to effectively represent the 
needs of all constituents. 

6.10 In December 2019 there were 5,755 (4.2%) of the working age population aged 16-
64 claiming out of work benefits in Rochdale. The number of residents claiming out 
of work benefits has been steadily increasing over the last six months. The claimant 
count combines those claiming Job Seekers Allowance with the number of people 
receiving Universal Credit principally for being unemployed. Within this group, the 
claimant count for those over 50 years old has been increasing, reflecting the 
regional and national trend. 

Page 20



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

13

The Councils governance and decision making

Context

7. Rochdale Borough Council has 60 councillors and there are 20 wards; each with 3 
councillors. The Council elects its councillors by thirds, with elections held over a 
four year cycle with the fourth year a fallow year when no local elections are held. 
Since 2011 the Council has been a majority Labour Council.

7.1 As of January 2020 the political make-up of the Council is as follows:

7.2 Rochdale is one of the 10 authorities in Greater Manchester, which together make 
up the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA).  The GMCA is led by the 
elected Mayor, Andy Burnham. The Mayor is assisted by Assistant Mayors who have 
specific areas of responsibility and these include the 10 Leaders of the Greater 
Manchester local authorities; for example the Leader of Rochdale Borough Council, 
Councillor Allen Brett, has responsibility for the Community, Voluntary and Co-ops 
portfolio. GMCA works with its constituent authorities and local services, businesses, 
communities and other partners to improve the services and opportunities for 
residents of Greater Manchester.  

The Council

7.3 Rochdale Borough Council is the main decision asking body of the authority. The 
Council usually meets six times each ‘municipal year’.  The first meeting is the Annual 
meeting which is held a few weeks after the local elections, where appointments to 
the Council’s cabinet, committees, sub-committees and various outside bodies are 
made. The Council has a ‘budget meeting’ usually in late February or early March 
whereby it will set its budget, council tax and business rates for the following 
financial year. The other meetings take place in accordance with the council’s 
calendar of meetings and these will ordinarily be held in July, October, December 
and March. 

7.4 The role of the Council is to agree the Council’s budget, council tax base, to establish 
a policy framework in which the authority can operate, to determine responsibility 
for the execution of its statutory and discretionary functions and to appoint to 
committees, sub-committees and sundry other bodies. 

Page 21



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

14

Leadership - The Executive

7.5 The Council appoints one of its 60 members to be the Leader of the Council and this 
appointment is for a period of four years (unless the Leader resigned the position, 
ceases to be a Councillor or is defeated in a ‘confidence’ motion). In December 2017 
Councillor Allen Brett became the Leader of Rochdale Borough Council.

7.6 The Leader shall determine all delegations of executive functions, appoint a Cabinet 
and determine portfolio holder arrangements and responsibilities.

7.7 The Council’s Executive comprises the Cabinet, Township Committees (and their 
delegated sub-committees), the Strategic Place Board and the Integrated 
Commissioning Board. The Executive, in this sense refers to any executive functions 
carried out – it can also be used as an alternate term for the Cabinet. The executive 
carries out all of the local authority’s functions which are not the responsibility of 
any other part of the local authority, whether by law or under the Council’s 
constitution.

7.8 In addition the Leader of the Council plays a significant role in the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority and associated committees, the Association of 
Greater Manchester Executive Board as well as the Greater Manchester Reform 
Committee and as mentioned above, the current Leader has responsibility within 
GMCA for the Community, Voluntary and Co-ops portfolio.

Leadership - Cabinet

7.9 The cabinet is made up of the Leader of the Council and between two and nine 
further councillors appointed by the Leader. The Leader allocates responsibilities to 
each cabinet member, including responsibility for a specific portfolio of services and 
issues.  A councillor allocated such a portfolio shall be referred to as a cabinet 
member or portfolio holder.

7.10 Most operational decisions are taken by the Cabinet or by Officers who have been 
authorised to do so by the Leader and/or the Cabinet. Major decisions that are made 
by the Cabinet are published in a ‘Key Decisions Notice’ that is published, to the 
Council’s web-site, no less than 28 days prior to a decision being taken, insofar as 
they can be anticipated.  If these major decisions are to be discussed at meetings, 
these will generally be open for the public to attend except where personal, 
confidential or exempt matters, of which notice has been given, are being discussed.

7.11 The Cabinet has to make decisions which are in line with the Council’s overall 
policies and budget. If it wishes to make a decision which is outside the Budget or 
Policy Framework, this must be referred to the Council as a whole to decide.

Leadership - Cabinet Members

7.12 Cabinet members are councillors who have been allocated responsibility for a 
particular service or thematic area. They have delegated powers assigned to them by 

Page 22



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

15

the Leader of the Council to make decisions on matters relevant to their particular 
portfolio as set out in the Council’s constitution.

7.13 The current portfolios for Cabinet members including the Leader of the Council are 
set out in the table below.

Position Portfolio Portfolio Responsibilities

Leader of the 
Council Leader& Finance Finance, Special Projects, GMCA/AGMA, Greater Manchester 

Relationships and Communications

Deputy Leader & 
Cabinet Member

Deputy Leader and 
Health & Wellbeing

Public Health, Public Protection, Health & Wellbeing Board, 
ICB, Drugs and Alcohol Commissioning, Greater Manchester 
Health and Social Care Devolution

Cabinet Member Resources ICT, Legal, Governance, Human Resources, Payroll, Corporate, 
Policy, Health & Safety.

Cabinet Member
Regeneration 
Business, Skills & 
Employment

Regeneration, Strategic Development, RDA, Jobs, Business and 
Intelligence Services, Skills and Employment and Economic 
Growth.

Cabinet Member Planning & 
Developments

Planning, Building Control, Strategic  Estates & Assets, 
Sustainability/Low Carbon, Strategic Housing, RBH Client

Cabinet Member Adult Care Adult Safeguarding, Adult Social Care, Joint Commissioning 
and Care Strategy, Adult Care Market Strategy,

Cabinet Member Children’s Services Education, Children’s Social Care, Children’s Safeguarding, 
Schools, Joint Commissioning – Children

Cabinet Member
Neighbourhoods, 
Community & 
Culture

Townships, libraries, Community Safety, Coroners & 
Registrars, voluntary Sector, Community Cohesion, 
Community centres, Culture, Link 4 Life Client, Events

Page 23



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

16

Cabinet Member Environment Highways, Environmental Management, Street Lighting Client, 
Facilities Management, Property Services

7.14 Since 2013 the Council’s Leader has been able to appoint Assistant Portfolio Holders 
whose purpose is to assist Cabinet Members in the undertaking of their duties. The 
Assistants may carry out such responsibilities as the Cabinet Member determines, 
and may attend meetings in place of the Cabinet Member, however the Assistant 
Portfolio Holder does not have voting rights. The Cabinet Member shall be 
responsible for the actions of their Assistant.

7.15 Cabinet members hold positions on a wide range of internal committee meetings; 
including:

 Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee
 Heywood Township Committee
 Middleton Township Committee
 Pennines Township Committee
 Rochdale North Township Committee
 Rochdale South Township Committee
 Integrated Commissioning Board
 Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale (STAR) Joint Committee

7.16 Cabinet members will usually sit on the relevant GMCA committee or partnership 
meetings within their portfolio. Additionally, executive members will attend a range 
of external as well as ad hoc meetings with officers, community organisations and 
businesses and partners; these include:

 Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership
 North West Flood & Coastal Defence Committee
 Manchester Airport Group
 North West Employers Forum

7.17 The demand on time of Cabinet Members is extremely high with the majority 
carrying out their workload on a full time basis. Cabinet meet monthly and there is a 
substantial amount of supporting documentation for each meeting to accompany 
each decision taken. Executive members will often be required to read over 200 
pages of reports for each meeting before a decision can be taken. To put this into 
context, the Executive made decisions on 108 substantive items in 2015/16. 

Regulatory Meetings

7.18 The Council appoints Committees to discharge Council (or non-executive) functions, 
such as regulatory matters, acting as Trustee, and staffing matters relating to senior 
staff. These matters are not Cabinet responsibilities but are considered by 
Committees appointed by the Council or by Officers under delegated powers.  

Page 24



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

17

Committee Members in 
Attendance

Meetings 
Per Year

Planning and Licensing Committee  14 11 

Audit and Governance Committee  9 5

Chief Officer Employment Committee  5 1 

Corporate Parenting Board 8 6

Voluntary Sector Partnership 7 5

Charitable Trustee Committee  5 5 

7.19 The variety of committees take up a vast amount of a councillors’ time. Attendance 
at a meeting will require preparation (e.g. reading through agenda papers/reports or 
attending site visits). Meetings vary in length some may be completed in a matter of 
minutes whereas some others may last up to between three and four hours.

Planning & Licensing

7.20 The Planning and Licensing Committee is responsible for exercising the development 
control and regulatory powers and duties of the Council under the Town and 
Country Planning Acts (and any Regulations or Orders thereunder) including 
considering planning applications. The Committee exercises all the functions of the 
licensing authority that relate to the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005.
The Planning and Licensing Committee is currently made up of 15 members (all non-
executive, although there are no legal reasons to constrain a Cabinet Member being 
appointed to this committee)

7.21 The functions of the Licensing Committee, under the Licensing Act 2003, are 
delegated to a Licensing Sub-Committee; which comprises three members appointed 
on an ad-hoc basis and wherever possible includes a non-Labour group member. 
Rochdale Council’s constitution details which functions are dealt with at Planning 
and Licensing Committee and Licensing Sub-Committee level.

7.22 The Licensing Sub-Committee deals predominantly with alcohol licensing as well as 
licensing in regards to gambling legislation.

7.23 Regulation of taxi and private hire legislation, unlike many GM authorities is made at 
officer level. All decision making powers in terms of granting, suspending and 
revoking licences have been delegated to officers via a licensing panel. The Council’s 
Head of Public Protection is the Chair of the Licensing Panel; other panel members 
include the Licensing Operational Manager and Licensing Specialist Lead. Panels take 
place every month and average around a day and a half in length.

7.24 The number of Licensing Sub-Committees that take place per year varies. It is 
dependent on the number of representations/objections received to any licensing 

Page 25



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

18

applications and/or reviews that have been triggered throughout the year. On 
average there are four Licensing Sub-Committees that take place within a financial 
year. A committee hearing normally takes on around two hours for members to 
consider applications; on occasion more time is required depending on the 
complexity of the application. The Licensing Sub-Committee meet on an ad hoc basis 
and when required.

7.25 The membership of a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing is drawn from the 
membership of the Planning and Licensing Committee. Different members can make 
up any Licensing Sub-Committee; it is usually dependant as to a member’s 
availability as well as selecting members who have received the appropriate training 
but who do not represent constituents from the Council Ward where the licensing 
application is subject.

7.26 The Planning and Licensing Committee determines some planning applications in 
respect of the Borough. Other planning applications are delegated to Officers for 
determination. In addition to the Planning and Licensing Committee there are 
Township Planning Panels whereby members of local Township areas are consulted 
on local planning application before they go to the main Planning and Licensing 
Committee. It is not permitted for a member of the Planning and Licensing 
Committee to serve on a Township Planning Panel.

7.27 During the 2018/19 Municipal Year there were 17 planning applications considered 
by the Planning and Licensing Committee. The time commitments from a Member of 
the Planning and Licensing Committee are high. Often a meeting will involve a full 
day’s commitment from a Member as the pre-meeting activities will include reading 
through detailed agenda reports, attending site visits to the various application sites, 
attending briefing and/or training sessions provided by Planning and/or legal Officers 
and then attending the meeting itself which can last up to between three and four 
hours (depending on the number of planning applications to be considered).

Audit & Governance

7.28 Functions are also delegated to the Audit and Governance committee. The remit of 
this committee is to approve the authorities’ statement of accounts, income, 
expenditure, balance sheet and record of payments and receipts. The Committee 
comprises nine members of the Council; and a non-voting ‘Independent Person’ for 
consideration of Member Conduct issues only, as required by the Localism Act 2011, 
to serve when considering relevant business.

7.29 The delegated functions of the Audit and Governance committee include:

 Powers to make payments or provide benefits in cases of maladministration
 Duty to divide constituency into polling districts

Page 26



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

19

 Power to divide electoral divisions into polling districts at local government 
elections.

Delegated Responsibilities

7.30 The council’s constitution sets out the delegation arrangements in respect of 
regulatory functions.

7.31 The Council agrees the higher level policies and the budget, and determines 
responsibility for Council decision making, appointing Committees and delegating 
responsibility to Officers.

7.32 Non-executive functions shall be delegated by the Council. Executive functions 
shall be delegated as determined by the Leader of the Council. Delegations must 
always have regard to and comply with the Constitution, and in particular with 
Financial Regulations, Contract Procedure Rules and Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules.  

Support Functions

7.33 The Council has a Governance Support team in place which assist both cabinet and 
non-executive members. The range of support includes:

 Production of letters and other correspondence on the members behalf
 Payment of ward surgery invoices
 Dealing with any enquiries or requests for services 
 Assisting with IT equipment
 Assistance with Diary Management
 Arranging meetings & Booking Rooms
 Diary Management
 AOB

7.34 The Governance Support Team also have permission to review and update web 
pages in relation to councillor’s details, photographs and committee memberships.

 
7.35 Regularly throughout the municipal year the Governance Support Team provide 

training for members via workshops on a range of various subjects; below is the list 
of workshops for this year:

 Council Constitution & Procedure Rules
 Chairing Skills
 Councillors as Director – Roles & Responsibilities
 Code of Conduct
 GM Spatial Framework
 GM Clean Air Plans/Standards for Licensing Taxi’s
 Personal Safety – Online Presence & Security
 Planning & Licensing

Page 27



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

20

 Supporting Safer Communities- Focusing on Domestic Abuse

7.36 The Leader of the Council receives additional support via a personal assistant. This is 
a full time Council officer post. 

7.37 Additionally Township officers support councillors with day to day constituency 
work. This can vary from helping to identify solutions for issues as well as 
collaborating with services and partners.

Scrutiny Functions

7.38 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees support the work of the Cabinet and the 
Council as a whole. They have an important role in reviewing the council's policies, 
matters of general concern, and making recommendations to the full council or to 
the cabinet on future policy options. The scrutiny function acts as a ‘critical friend’ to 
decision makers helping develop policy and performance ensuring there is a positive 
impact on the residents of Rochdale.

7.39 The Committees are consulted by cabinet on the development of policy and the 
Council’s budget. They monitor decisions of the cabinet and can ‘call-in’ executive 
decisions which have been made but not yet implemented. This enables them to 
consider whether the decision is appropriate. They may recommend that the Cabinet 
reconsider the decision or ask the Council as a whole to determine whether the 
Cabinet should be recommended to reconsider the decision. 

7.40 The Committees are able to produce reports and recommendations to advise the 
Cabinet and the Council on policies and service delivery issues.  One Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee also maintains an overview of the provision of local health 
services and providers.

7.41 The general role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees as set out by the council’s 
constitution is as follows:

 Maintain an overview of, review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in 
connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions

 Make reports and/or recommendations to the Cabinet and/or the Council in connection 
with the discharge of any functions

 Consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants 
 Exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet 

implemented by the Executive
 Monitor performance in all Council service areas
 Consider Directorate Plans and Reports
 Not consider any matter relating to standards of behaviour, conduct, ethics or probity, 

directly or indirectly involving any Member of the Council

7.42 Rochdale Council operates with three overview and scrutiny committees that all 
require a significant amount of both member and officer time. The committee 
agenda will usually consist of a series of reports of varying length and complexity. 

Page 28



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

21

Preparation is required by members to read and interpret the reports in advance in 
order to make best use of committee meeting time.

Committee Members in 
Attendance

Meetings Per 
Year

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 11 8

Health, Schools & Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 9 6

Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 9 4

7.43 Membership of overview and scrutiny committees includes elected members from 
different political parties ensuring the maintenance of the Council’s political balance.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

• Service development and delivery
• Townships
• Partners or key contractors (e.g. Agilysis)
• Corporate Performance Monitoring
• Finance Monitoring
• Annual budget development

Portfolio
• Finance
• Corporate  Services and Neighbourhoods

Health, Schools & Care Scrutiny Committee

• Health scrutiny (CCG, Pennine Acute, 
Pennine Care, Healthwatch, NHS England, 
CQC etc)
• Health and Wellbeing 
• Partners or key contractors (e.g. Inspired 
Spaces)
• Child and Adult Social Care
• Early Help and Schools 
• Safeguarding 
• Integrated Commissioning 

Portfolio
• Public Health and Regulation
• Adult Care
• Children’s Services

Page 29



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

22

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

• Economy and Regeneration
• Safer Communities Partnership
• Partners or key contractors (e.g. RDA, 
RBH, L4L)
• Communities 
• Local Development Framework
• Housing
• Environment
• Highways
• Licensing 

Portfolio
• Leader (regeneration)
• Business Skills and Employment
• Housing and Environment
• Public Health and Regulation
• Community Culture and Tourism

7.44 A review of the scrutiny process was last undertaken in 2015. In undertaking the 
review, consideration was given to both a service-related Committee structure and a 
thematic approach

7.45 Previously there had been only two overview and scrutiny committees but it was 
decided to move towards a three Committee option. The new model proposed 
identified main Committees for individual Directors and Portfolio Holders to attend. 
It was proposed that the establishment of a new committee would allow for a much 
more in depth consideration of individual matters improving the adequacy of the 
scrutiny process.

7.46 At the start of each year Overview and Scrutiny committees agree a specific work 
programme which is monitored and updated at each committee as a standing 
agenda item. The Council has the option to set up sub-scrutiny committees or task 
and finish groups in order to review specific areas of the scrutiny work programme. 
The sub-groups report back to the Overview and Scrutiny committee on their 
findings who are then able to make recommendations to the executive or other 
appropriate actions.

Joint Scrutiny Functions

7.47 Rochdale councillors are part of the Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental 
Health) Trust. Membership is made up of three Councillors from each of the five 
constituent Local Authorities (Bury, Oldham, Rochdale, Stockport and Tameside).

7.48 The remit of this group is to scrutinise services provided by the Pennine Care 
Foundation Trust relating to the health of the population in Bury, Oldham, Rochdale 
Stockport and Tameside and contribute to the development of policy to improve 
health and reduce health inequalities in respect of services provided by the Trust. 

7.49 The Joint Scrutiny Committee for the Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust also has 
three members appointed by Rochdale Borough Council. This committee scrutinise 

Page 30



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

23

generic services provided by Pennine Acute hospitals relating to the health of the 
population in Bury, North Manchester, Oldham and Rochdale as well as contributing 
to the development of policy to improve health and reduce health inequalities in 
respect of services provided by the hospital. 

Greater Manchester Partnerships

7.50 As mentioned earlier in this report Rochdale is one of 10 councils which are part of 
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA).  

7.51 The work of the GMCA requires significant time of the Leader of the Council as well 
as various Cabinet members. Other Rochdale councillors outside of the cabinet also 
are part of some of the GMCA committee groups. The participation of councillor 
business with GMCA means there is an expansion of the boundary of a councillor 
into the wider city region of Greater Manchester rather than just Rochdale.

7.52 There are a variety of GM committee meetings and groups councillors attend; these 
include:

 Greater Manchester Combined Authority
 Joint GMCA & AGMA
 GM Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview and scrutiny 

committee
 AGMA statutory functions committee
 GM joint health scrutiny committee
 GM Health and care board
 GM Health & Care joint commissioning board
 GM culture and social impact fund committee
 GMP & Crime panel

Other Partnerships

7.53 Rochdale Council also works alongside Stockport and Trafford as part of the joint 
committee on strategic procurement (STAR). The committee work to arrange 
contracts for any supplies, services or building work that can’t be provided in house. 
There is a focus on promoting best procurement practice and championing social 
value.

7.54 The council also commissions some of its services from other bodies and works in 
partnerships with those bodies to ensure services are delivered in accordance with 
agreed standards. The following is a list of the council's key partners.

 Link4Life 
Rochdale Boroughwide Cultural Trust - provider of arts, sport and heritage services 
in the Rochdale borough as commissioned by Rochdale Borough Council under a 
Partnership Agreement.

 Rochdale Boroughwide Housing 

Page 31

https://link4life.org/
http://www.rbh.org.uk/


Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

24

All council houses have been transferred to Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (RBH). 
RBH is now a registered provider. All social rented housing needs are met by 
registered providers in the area.

 Rochdale Development Agency
Rochdale Development Agency (RDA) - the lead organisation driving regeneration 
and development in Rochdale. Established in 1993 by Rochdale Metropolitan 
Borough Council, the RDA was set up as a not-for-profit company to take a lead role 
in driving regeneration and development within the borough. Whilst the RDA has 
strong links with the commercial sector, it maintains close links with Rochdale 
Borough Council and has appointed specific representatives on its board believing 
that this cooperation is vital in delivering the borough’s vision for the future.

 Agilisys 
Rochdale Borough Council works with Agilisys delivering IT and customer services.

7.55 The council has formed partnerships/committees with other public and voluntary 
sector agencies to set the strategic direction for the community, including health and 
wellbeing and the safeguarding of children and adults. The following lists the key 
strategic partnerships in which the council has a leading role:

 Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership
The Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership is a statutory partnership established 
in October 2000. Its purpose is to tackle crime and disorder on a multi-agency basis 
across the borough of Rochdale. 

 Strategic Place Board
The board leads the improvement of the health and wellbeing of the borough 
population, with a specific focus on tackling health inequalities. This joins up 
commissioning strategies across the NHS, social care, public health and other 
partners that contribute to health and wellbeing. There is an agreed vision, strategy 
and delivery plan to keep the business of the Board focused and ambitious.

 Rochdale Safeguarding Children Partnership
Information and advice about safeguarding children in the borough of Rochdale.

 Rochdale Safeguarding Adults Board
The Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board (RBSAB) is a partnership of statutory and 
non-statutory organisations. It is committed to Safeguarding Adults and will continue to 
work towards establishing a society where there is zero tolerance to adult abuse.

 Children and Young People's Partnership
The Children and Young People's Partnership is the successor to the former 

Page 32

https://www.agilisys.co.uk/
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/place-and-environment/Pages/safer-communities-plan.aspx
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=558&Year=0
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/children-and-young-people-1/Pages/children-and-young-people-plan.aspx


Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

25

Children's Trust Board. It is a strategic partnership of key agencies in Rochdale which 
deliver a collaborative approach to improving and delivering services to children and 
young people in the borough. The Partnership sets the strategic vision for children 
and young people, providing leadership and challenge.

 NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMR CCG)
Led by GPs and health professionals who decide how the local healthcare budget is 
spent and to make sure quality services are provided in the borough.

 Co-operative Councils' Innovation Network 
The Co-operative Councils' Innovation Network (CCIN) is a collaboration between 
local authorities who are committed to finding better ways of working for, and with, 
local people for the benefit of their local community. As a member of the CCIN, we 
help to develop innovative new approaches to turning cooperative principles into 
local practice.

Community Decision Making

7.56 In order to engage and involve the community in decision making processes the 
Council established four Township Committees in 1992. In March 2019 the Council 
made the decision to split Rochdale Township into two; this created an additional 
township committee.

7.57 Residents are encouraged to get involved in the discussion and decision making 
regarding their local area at Township Committees. By attending residents can meet 
their ward councillors, link in to local community and voluntary groups, find out 
about local activities and meet service providers such as the police, housing 
authorities and the Council.

7.58 The Township Committees meet four times per year. Elected members are required 
to sit on the Township meetings that correspond with their ward. Members for the 
Township Sub- committees are nominated. Each Township Committee meeting 
commences with an Open Forum session, giving local residents the opportunity to 
raise issues of local concern.

7.59 The Township Committees hold a responsibility for the local delivery of council 
services covering Environmental Management (excluding Refuse Collection and 
Recycling and Bereavement Services), Highways and Engineering, Community 
Centres, Libraries, Development Control, Township Funds, and Leisure Projects – 
commissioning. Such services and facilities are managed in line with borough-wide 
policies. As part of this process the Township Committees work in line with the 
priorities identified in the Townships Plans.

Page 33

https://www.councils.coop/


Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

26

7.60 Township Committees also deal with a further range of issues which impact locally, 
such as determining Traffic Regulation Orders that are the subject of objection, 
Creation of Footpath Orders, Compulsory Purchase Orders and approving changes of 
school names.

7.61 Each Township Committee has devolved capital and revenue resources, including a 
revenue Township Fund. Examples of purposes to which these funds and budgets 
can be put include grants schemes; funding community and environmental projects; 
funding priorities identified in the Township Plan. The Township Committees have 
each established their own Sub-Committee arrangements and terms of reference for 
dealing with devolved services and the expenditure of devolved funds and budgets; 
these Sub-Committees are:

 Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee.
 Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub-Committee.
 Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee.
 Rochdale North Township Action and Resources Committee.
 Rochdale South Township Action and Resources Committee.

7.62 Township officers support councillors in their day to day constituency work. Helping 
to identify solutions then collaborating with other services and partners to obtain 
funding, approvals and delivery of said solutions/schemes.

7.63 The role of the Townships Officers are to support councillors in each of the five 
Townships to achieve the following:

 To ensure coordination and support in connection with the performance and 
delivery of Council Services to each individual Township.

 To allocate devolved funding at a local level to projects that respond to the needs of 
local communities.

 To promote Community Development and support development of Community 
Projects to empower local people within their own communities.

 To respond to issues raised in the public arena by means of a structure of both 
formal and informal meetings.

 To work with Council Services and our partners to facilitate local decision making, to 
support the aspirations of the Borough’s residents, businesses and visitors, with 
additional focus on driving forward the Public Service Reform agenda on a Township 
basis.

 To consider the further devolution of powers, services and budgets to Townships.

Page 34



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

27

8 The gender split of councillors in Rochdale is 62% male councillors to 38% female 
councillors. The Cabinet has a split of 67% male to 33% female councillors.

8.1 Most councillors are 50 or older with 77% in this age bracket. 53% of councillors are 
over 60 years of age. 

8.2 Ethnically the majority of councillors, over 70%, define themselves as White 
British/White English. The next biggest ethnic group are councillors who define 
themselves as Asian British (21%).

8.3 The Council does not hold information on whether councillors are in employment 
and whether this is full or part time employment. It should be recognised throughout 
this report that some members are in employment, this should be considered when 
understanding the challenge of balancing the role of a member against significant 
demands in time elsewhere.

8.4 The majority of councillors have served within the role between 6 to 10 years (45%). 
Around 30% have only been appointed a councillor in the last five years and 12% 
have been councillors for over 20 years.

9 Rochdale Councillors undertake a variety of activities in order to carry out their 
representational role with electors; these include:

 Engagement with residents, groups and local organisations on a wide range of 
different issues, undertaking casework on their behalf and taking on an important 
community leadership role

 Communicate Council decisions, strategies, polices and services that affect residents
 Understanding issues within their represented ward; promoting ward interests 

within and outside the Council
 Ensure that the needs of local communities are identified, understood and 

supported by liaising with cabinet members, officers, representatives of local 
organisations, interest groups and businesses.

 Representing local views at council meetings and leading local campaigns on behalf 
of the community

 Work with outside bodies as a representative of the Council, ensuring Council’s 
interest is maintained.

9.1 Rochdale councillors provide a bridge between the community and the Council. They 
are advocates for local residents representing local views and priorities. Councillors 

Profile of a Rochdale Councillor

Representational role of councillors

Page 35



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

28

are required to have a visible community leadership role, working with partners, 
engaging with residents and ensuring the delivery of local services. 

9.2 Councillors in Rochdale all regularly engage with constituents. The most popular 
methods of engagement are face to face, telephone and email. When asked if there 
had been a significant change to the amount of time spent communicating with 
constituents over the last 12 months; 31% of councillors stipulated that they felt that 
they were spending significantly more time on email in particular.

 9.3 Community leadership is an integral part of a councillors’ role; this can only be 
achieved by effective engagement with local residents. Although new technology is 
having an increasing influence on the way councillors engage with residents there is 
still value in different types of face to face communication including surgeries, 
community forums and ward walk-abouts. The table below highlights the proportion 
of councillors spending over 15 hours per month on different aspects of community 
engagement.

Proportion of Councillors Spending over 15 hours per month on different 
aspects of community engagement

Community obligations (e.g. community 
committees/community forums) 26%

Engaging with constituents (e.g. home visits, ward walk 
abouts) 42%

Dealing with constituents (e.g. enquiries/casework from and 
on behalf of constituents) 42%

9.4 The increased use of technology has allowed councillors to engage with constituents 
and public such as young people, minority groups and those not on the electoral 
register. This is mainly via the use of email with 98% of councillors surveyed saying 
they use this method of engagement. 47% of councillors now use social media as a 
method of engagement with constituents with around half of councillors having an 
active social media account.

 
9.5 98% (50) of councillors who completed the councillor survey stated they use email to 

engage with constituents and the public. The increased use of technology such as 
utilisation of email and mobile phones has enabled the public to engage with 
councillors in a more efficient and visible way. To facilitate this councillors have been 
provided with electronic tablets in order to improve accessibility to emails, casework 
as well view reports, agendas and minutes from internal and external committee 
meetings. Councillors are also provided with mobile phones; mobile numbers are 
displayed on the council web in order to improve accessibility to the public.

9.6 Improved accessibility for the public to engage with councillors via technology such 
as email and mobile phones has led to a significant increase in the volume of 

Page 36



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

29

enquiries for a councillor. Although it is recognised that wider engagement should be 
developed and encouraged this does put additional demands on a councillors’ time.

9.7 The majority of a councillors’ time is responding to enquiries and undertaking 
casework which can be both demanding and time consuming. 70% of councillors 
address over 16 casework requests on average per month. Casework can vary in 
regards to complexity. 40% of councillors currently spend more than 16 hours a 
month dealing with casework; 20% spend over 20 hours per month. 

9.8 Casework can come to councillors via a variety of different channels although the 
most prominent is through member services or directly from constituents (e.g. 
email, phone, surgeries).

9.9 Councillors deal with their casework in a variety of ways; each case is different and is 
treated as such in the way it is approached and resolved. Councillors often liaise with 
the appropriate officers to find solutions as well as utilise support via township 
officers, governance and member services.  Councillors communicate with residents 
regarding casework often face to face at surgeries or over the phone and via email. 
There is an electronic system in place which allows all casework to be recorded; this 
allows councillors to understand the volume and progress on casework as well as 
number completed.

9.10 Although the demands on time are greater for Cabinet members the demands on 
non-cabinet members time is also significant. From the councillor survey non-cabinet 
members on average sit on nine separate committee or sub-committees groups.

9.11 Councillors who represent a higher proportion of constituents from a BAME 
background have additional roles to play within the community from a cultural 
perspective. An example of this would be in the Kashmiri community a Councillor 
would be expected to be present during the funeral proceedings of a constituent 
from the community.

9.12 Of the 51 councillors who responded to the question, 30 (58%) said that the 
time they spend on council business is greater than they had expected before 
they became a councillor. When asked if the amount of time spent on council 
business had changed over recent years, 44 (86%) members said that it had 
increased.

9.13 As the Council is part of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) 
there is a demand on councillors to attend meetings of GMCA to represent 
Rochdale. As well as meetings attended at GM; councillors are also appointed to 
and represent the community and Rochdale’s interests in various other 
organisations including Link4Life (leisure and heritage provider), North West 
Employers Forum, Salford University and Manchester Airport Group. 

9.14 Additionally there is a requirement for councillors to devote a significant amount 
of time on political party work; 44% of councillors reported that they spend over 16 

Page 37



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

30

hours each month on political party business, and 22% reported that they spend 
over 20 hours per month.

Greater Manchester Combined Authority

10.1 The GMCA work with local services, businesses, communities and other partners to 
improve the city-region. Rochdale is actively involved with the support and 
development of strategy and policies derived from the GMCA.  

10.2 A new Greater Manchester Strategy has been launched which sets out ten clear 
priorities for the region; these include:

 Children starting school ready to learn
 Young people equipped for life
 Good jobs for people to progress and develop
 A thriving economy in Greater Manchester
 World-class connectivity
 Safe, decent and affordable housing
 A green city for all
 Safe and strong communities
 Healthy lives and quality care
 An age friendly Greater Manchester

10.3 Rochdale as a member of the GMCA will deliver against these priorities. The work of 
the GMCA requires significant time of the Leader of the Council as well as various 
Cabinet members. Other Rochdale councillors outside of the cabinet also are part of 
some of the GMCA committee groups. 

10.4 The participation of councillor business with GMCA means Councillors not only 
represent local residents and constituents but also the wider city region of Greater 
Manchester rather than just Rochdale. 

Health and Social Care Integrated Commissioning 

10.5 Our recently developed Locality Plan sets out how we will do all we can so that 
residents in our borough live long and happy lives that are as healthy as possible, for 
as long as possible.  We recognise that we can only do this by working together.  
Stakeholders from across our local health and social care system have been working 
to develop a joint vision for health and care in Rochdale.  We recognise that strong 
partnerships are critical to the delivery of our collective vision and priorities.

10.6 In Rochdale we have been ambitious in our work to integrate health and social care.  
We have an Integrated Commissioning Directorate that sits across the Council and 
Clinical Commissioning Group.  We have a pooled budget of £350million, which is 

The changing role of council and of councillors

Page 38



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

31

delegated to the Integrated Commissioning Board.  This board has equal 
representation of cabinet members from the council and clinical leads from the CCG.  
This is overseen by a new Strategic Place Board (incorporating the Health and 
Wellbeing Board) which is chaired by the portfolio holder for Health & Wellbeing and 
has a number of other cabinet members on its board.

10.7 In addition to the integration of health and social care locally, Rochdale is closely 
involved with the integration work across Greater Manchester.  For example, the 
portfolio holder for Health and Wellbeing sits on the monthly GM Joint 
Commissioning Board.

10.8 As integrated commissioning expands, these roles will demand more time and will 
require commitment from a greater number of councillors.  We are progressing at 
pace with the development of our Local Care Organisation (LCO), which is 
responsible for how care and treatment is provided across the borough.  The LCO 
brings together experts from primary care, hospitals, community and voluntary 
organisations who deliver care and support directly to local residents. This new way 
of working has enabled innovation and the development of award winning services, 
however, it will also require the development of new and additional scrutiny 
procedures to meet this need.

Page 39



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

32

11 Rochdale has experienced significant growth since the last boundary review. As the 
population grows, it brings with it increasing diversity in terms of affluence and 
poverty, ethnicity and changes in the age structure of the wards and population. 
This places increasing demands on the role of the councillor, as they seek to 
support growing and more diverse communities.

11.1 The town centre has benefitted in recent years from unprecedented levels of 
investment with a £250m regeneration programme almost complete which has 
transformed the borough. Rochdale’s growth is now being planned for the next 10 
years and major projects are being developed to bring more jobs to the borough, 
many new homes and improved transport and digital infrastructure.  Business 
growth and investment activities are focused on attracting quality jobs and higher 
wage rates.

11.2 There are numerous challenges ahead including continued austerity as well as the 
uncertain impacts that Great Britain’s exit from the European Union could have on 
business; potentially creating uncertainty and reducing foreign investment and 
increasing costs for businesses through trade tariffs. These issues may reduce 
development and create financial pressures within the town. The Council will need 
to work harder in the future to protect existing businesses at the same time 
attracting new.

11.3 Devolution and the integration of services have produced significant challenges in 
recent years. Rochdale councillors are actively involved in various committees at 
Greater Manchester level representing and shaping the future of the borough.

11.4 In future as the council transitions and more services are integrated there will be 
considerable demands placed on councillors. Devolution and the greater control of 
public money in the region will mean that Rochdale Members, working with 
Greater Manchester colleagues, have more to oversee and make decisions on 
either through GMCA or as part of Scrutiny. Councillor involvement in making key 
decisions and regulatory processes ensures that residents are connected to the 
opportunities and developments although this does add to a councillor’s already 
substantial workload. 

11.5 Through modern technology constituents can engage with councillors in more 
accessible ways than ever before. Increased availability via email and social media 
allows the wider population, including the younger generation to engage with 
councillors. 

11.6 Throughout the submission there has been reference to the increasing workload of 
the modern day councillor in Rochdale which may appear to support an increase in 
councillor numbers. The council though in this time of austerity cannot justify an 
increase in numbers when there is already significant demands on resources and 

Conclusion

Page 40



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

33

services are under severe financial pressures which are likely to continue for the 
foreseeable. 

11.7 The report has clearly set out the case as to why a reduced number of councillors 
would inevitably result in a poorer governance for the Council in particular reducing 
the representation and interests of the residents of borough at local and at a 
Greater Manchester level. 

11.8 Rochdale Council aims to continue to develop and improve the lives of residents 
within the borough. For the council to continue to make these enhancements, while 
facing the challenges of austerity and a rising population, and whilst navigating 
devolution and integration, it is recommended that the size of the Council should 
remain at 60 councillors across 20 wards (3 members per ward).

Background Papers Place of Inspection

1. Councillor Survey Results
2. Blank Councillor Survey
3. Forecasting Technical Report

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 41



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

1

Rochdale Council Draft Submission on Council Size

Appendix 1 - Rochdale Councillor Workload Analysis

1.1 As part of the council size submission all 60 councillors were asked to 
complete a survey in order to provide a better understanding of their 
role. The survey was focused on the amount of time spent by 
councillors each month on council business, how councillors engage 
with constituents as well the additional representational roles of a 
councillor in Rochdale.

1.2 Councillors were asked specific questions regarding; 
 Governance and decision making
 Their representative role
 Preparation for meetings
 Engaging with constituents
 Dealing with casework
 Time spent on party political business

1.3 The survey also asked councillors to comment on how their personal 
workload and that of the wider council has changed over time.

1.4 51 members responded to the survey, this included the leader of the 
Council as well as all cabinet and assistant cabinet members.

Rochdale Councillors

1.5 Around a third of councillors have been in post for under 5 years; 45% 6 to 10 years 
and 24% have been post for over 10 years.

1.6 Over half of Councillors are aged over 60, and the second largest age group is 50-59 
at 24%. There are fewer younger Councillors with only 14% (7 Councillors) under 40.

20-29
 4

30-39
 3

40-49
 5

50-59
 12

Over 60
 27

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

1.7 The majority of Councillors are from a white background, with 75% (38) reporting 
being British, English or Welsh. Almost a quarter are Asian/Asian British, including 7 
Kashmiri, 4 Pakistani and 1 Bangladeshi Councillor(s).

Roles and Responsibilities

1.8 Councillors reported being a member of up to 16 governance groups, with an 
average of 9 per councillor. The most common being Council, Township Committees 
and Sub Committees, Labour Group Meeting and Labour Group Executive Meeting. 

Page 42



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

2

1.9 16 Councillors (31.4%) from the 51 that completed the survey reported being a 
member of Greater Manchester groups, with the Combined Authority being the 
most popular, with 4 Councillors. 

1.10 50% of Councillors have been appointed by the Council to additional outside bodies. 
With roles such as directors, spokesperson, chair, governor and board members, 
from a variety of bodies including;

 GM Transport Committee
 Deputy Mayor GM Police & Fire
 GM Pension Fund
 Groundwork
 Link4Life
 LGA
 Pennine Care NHS Trust/ Pennine Acute
 Heritage Trust
 Manchester Airport Group
 North West Flood & Coastal Defence Committee
 Salford University

Hours spent on Council business per month

1.11 A third of Councillors reported spending the largest amount of time (over 20 hours) 
attending council committees. Other tasks taking 20 hours or more were attendance 
at council meetings, and time spent on party business. Attendance at external 
meetings was far less, with the majority of councillors suggesting this was anywhere 
between 1 and 10 hours per month.  

1.12  Interacting with constituents, such as engaging and dealing with enquires took 6 to 
20 hours for the majority of councillors. There was a varying degree of time spent on 
community obligations, with a roughly even split across the time selection in the 
survey, with some councillors reporting up to 20 hours, but others as few as 1 to 5.

1.13 A third of Councillors reported spending 16 to 20 hours attending workshops, 
training and conferences, whereas over a half reported only taking 1 to 5 hours per 
month to do this. A similar pattern appeared in relation to travel, which would be an 
expected correlation due to travelling to workshops. 

1.14 A quarter of Councillors reported spending 1 to 5 hours preparing for meetings, 
whereas 33% reported this task taking anywhere between 16 and 20 hours per 
month. 

Case Work

1.15 65% of councillors deal with 11 to 25 cases per month, with 3 councillors reporting 
dealing with over 50 cases per month.

Page 43



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

3

1.16 Councillors were asked how they dealt with casework and what support they 
received. Some of the responses are captured below:

Conversations with ward colleagues, using Middleton township office, speaking to 
individual officers and committee services. Contacting 3rd party organisations (e.g. 
RBH) directly.

I deal with ward casework as and when it comes. Most of the case work is taken at 
our advice surgeries, but occasionally I undertake casework from residents. I get full 
support from officers and my colleagues

I mostly send the case work directly to relevant officers, if I am not sure whom to 
contact I use members services

1.17 Over half of councillors spent more time on council business than they expected to, 
and 86% report the time spent on council business has increased since they were 
initially elected as a councillor.

The increase has been due to;

 Understanding the role more, increased experience and responsibilities
 Being active in community engagement and networking
 Increase in poverty
 Increase in population
 More portfolio business
 Involved in specific community groups
 Less resource for Council services, more support to the public required.

1.18 Councillors suggest that aspects of the role increased mostly due to austerity, 
resulting in poverty and less resource and services to deal with the public’s worries. 
The public feel the only place to turn to is their Councillor after exhausting all other 
avenues, and this in turn increases casework and the need for surgeries.

Engaging with constituents

1.19 Most Councillors engage with constituents through face to face contact, telephone, 
email and meetings. 47% use social media, while 57% write letters. Other means of 
communication include surgeries. 

“

”

Page 44



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

4

98%

98%

69%

98%

57%

47%

75%

96%

12%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

 Face to face

 Telephone

 Text

 Email

 Letter

 Social Media

 Newsletters/Leaflets

 Meetings

 Other (please state)

1.20 Use of communication channels differed for each Councillor but the most common 
response was the largest amount of time was spent using email, telephone and face 
to face contact. Social media and letters had a mixed response, with 10% of some 
councillor’s communication through letters, whereas 14 reported not using letters at 
all. Social media was used around 10% to communicate, but 21 Councillors reported 
not using it.

1.21 Almost all Councillors stated they have noticed a significant increase in the amount 
of meetings they attend and emails they write. A large proportion report 
communication via telephone, and face to face to have increased. From the 
Councillors using social media, they report its usage to communicate being on the 
rise. 

Page 45



Appendix 2 – Councillor Survey

Local Government Boundary Review 
Councillor Survey

Overview
The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) has 
informed the Council of its decision to carry out an Electoral Review of the 
Council size (number of elected Councillors) and the number of wards and ward 
boundaries for Rochdale Borough Council.

There are two main benefits in regards to the outcome of an electoral review:

a) Fair representation of all electors in a council’s area.

b) Equal accessibility of elected members to their electorate

There is a requirement for the LGBCE to fully understand the role of a 
councillor in Rochdale.

To assist with this please could you complete the short questionnaire. Your 
views are important and will help in regards to compiling the Council Size 
report.

Page 46



Survey
1 What is your name?

Name: 

2 What ward do you represent?
Please select an option
Please select only one item

 Balderstone and Kirkholt

 Bamford

 Castleton

 Central Rochdale

 East Middleton

 Healey

 Hopwood Hall

 Kingsway

 Littleborough Lakeside

 Milkstone and Deeplish

 Milnrow and Newhey

 Norden

 North Heywood

 North Middleton

 Smallbridge and Firgrove

 South Middleton

 Spotland and Falinge

Page 47



 Wardle and West Littleborough

 West Heywood

 West Middleton

3 How long have you been a Councillor with Rochdale Council?
Please select an option
Please select only one item

 to 5 years

 6 to 10 years

 11 to 15 years

 16 to 20 years

 Over 20 years

4 In addition to your role as a councillor, what other responsibilities do you have 
within the Council? (Tick all that apply)
Please select all that apply

 Mayor

 Deputy Leader

 Cabinet Member and Portfolio Holder

 Assistant Portfolio Holder

 Committee Chair

5 Which governance groups are you a member? (Tick all that apply)

Page 48



Please select all that apply

 Council

 Cabinet

 Informal Cabinet

 Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee

 Township Committees and Sub Committees

 Heywood Township Committee

 Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee

 Middleton Township Committee

 Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub Committee

 Pennines Township Committee

 Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee

 Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub

 Rochdale North Township Committee

 Rochdale South Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee

 Rochdale South Township Committee

 Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

 Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

 Charitable Trustee Committee

 Chief Officer Employment Committee

Page 49



 Corporate Parenting Board

 Hearing Sub-Committee

 Licensing Sub-Committee

 Norman Barnes Fund

 Planning and Licensing Committee

 Integrated Commissioning Board

 Strategic Place Board (formerly HWBB)

 Ward Forums and Township Working Parties

 Audit and Governance Committee

 Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting

 Bamford and Oakenrod Area Forum

 Brimrod, Marland and Sudden Area Forum

 Castleton Area Forum

 Central Rochdale Area Forum

 Healey Area Forum

 Kingsway Area Forum

 Littleborough and Wardle Community Meeting

 Middleton Township Environment and Culture Forum

 Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum

 Milnrow, Newhey and Firgrove Area Forum

 Norden Area Forum

Page 50



 Pennines Township Regeneration & Facilities

 Rochdale Township Members Regeneration Group

 Spotland and Falinge Area Forum

 Conservative Group Meeting

 Governance Board

 Labour Group Executive Meeting

 Labour Group Meeting

 Leader's Meeting with Pensioner's Representatives

 Voluntary Sector Partnership

 Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust

 Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale (STaR) Joint Committee

6 Do you attend or are a member of any Greater Manchester committee groups? 
(Tick all that apply)
Please select all that apply

 Greater Manchester Combined Authority

 AGMA

 Joint GMCA & AGMA

 GMCA Standards Committee

 GMCA Resources Committee

Page 51



 Greater Manchester Audit Committee

 GM Corporate Issues & Reform Overview & Scrutiny committee

 GM Economy, Business Growth & Skills Over view & Scrutiny Committee

 GM Housing Planning & Environment Overview & Scrutiny

 GM Planning & Housing Commission

 AGMA Statutory Functions Committee 2019/20

 GM Joint Health Scrutiny Committee

 GM Transport Committee

 GM Local Enterprise Partnership

 GM Health & Care Board

 GM Health & Care Joint Commissioning Board

 GM Waste & Recylcling Committee

 GM Culture & Social Impact Fund Committee 2019/20

 GMP & Crime Panel

 Independent Police Ethics Committee

 GM Green City Region Partnership 2019/20

 Low Carbon Hub Board (to 29 July 2019)

Page 52



7 Have you been appointed by the Council to any additional outside bodies?
Please select an option:
Please select only one item

 Yes

 No

Please state the organisation(s)

Please state the role(s) 

8 On average, how many hours per month do you spend on council business?

1 to 
5 

hours

6 to 10 
hours

11 to 15 
hours

16 to 20 hours Over 20 
hours

Attendance at 
Council 
Committees e.g. 
Scrutiny, Licensing 
etc.
Please select only 
one item

Page 53



1 to 
5 

hours

6 to 10 
hours

11 to 15 
hours

16 to 20 hours Over 20 
hours

Attendance at other 
Council meetings 
e.g. meetings with 
officers, working 
groups etc
Please select only                     
one item

Time spent on 
party business
Please select only 
one item

Attendance at 
external meetings 
(where you have 
been appointed a 
representative by 
the Council)
Please select only 
one item

Community 
obligations (e.g. 
community 
forums)
Please select only 
one item

Engaging with 
constituents, eg. 
Advice Bureaux, 
home visits, ward 
walk-abouts

Page 54



1 to 
5 

hours

6 to 10 
hours

11 to 15 
hours

16 to 20 hours Over 20 
hours

Please select only 
one item

Dealing with 
constituents 
enquiries/casework 
from and on behalf 
of constituents
Please select only 
one item

Preparing for 
meetings
Please select only 
one item

Attending 
workshops, 
training, 
conferences
Please select only 
one item

Travel related to 
councillor business
Please select only 
one item

Other
Please select only 
one item

Page 55



Please state other

9 How many cases/issues do you deal with, on average, per month?
Please select an option
Please select only one item

 1 to 5

 6 to 10

 11 to 15

 16 to 20

 21 to 25

 26 to 30

 31 to 35

 36 to 40

 41 to 45

 46 to 50

 Over 50

Page 56



10 How do you deal with your ward casework and what support do you receive, eg. 
Yourself via the Contact Centre, via officers from the appropriate area, via officers 
from Members’ Services?
Please comment below

11 Is the time you spend on council business what you expected when you became 
a councillor?
Please select an option
Please select only one item

 Yes

 No - I spend more time on council business

 No - I spend less time on council business

12 Has the time you spend on council business increased since you were initially 
elected as a councillor?
Please select an option:
Please select only one item

 Yes

 No

If yes, what do you think the reason is for the increase?

Page 57



13 What aspect of your duties have increased the most since becoming a 
councillor?

Please comment below

14 
Wh
at 
me
tho
ds 
of 
co
m
mu
nic
atio

ns do you use when engaging with constituents? (Tick all that apply)
Please select all that apply

 Face to face

 Telephone

 Text

 Email

 Letter

 Social Media

 Newsletters/Leaflets

 Meetings

 Other (please state)

Please state other

15 What percentage of your time do you spend communicating with constituents?

Page 58



0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Face to face
Please select only one 
item

Telephone
Please select only one 
item

Text
Please select only one 
item

Email
Please select only one 
item

Letter
Please select only one 
item

Social media
Please select only one 
item

Newsletters
Please select only one 
item

Meetings
Please select only one 
item

Page 59



0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Other
Please select only one 
item

16 Have you noticed any significant change in the amount of time you spend 
communicating via each of these methods in the last 12 months?

Spending 
significant 
more time

Spending 
more time

Spending 
less time

Spending 
significantly 

less time

N/A

Face to face
Please select only one 
item

Telephone
Please select only one 
item

Text
Please select only one 
item

Email
Please select only one 
item

Letter
Please select only one 
item

Page 60



Spending 
significant 
more time

Spending 
more time

Spending 
less time

Spending 
significantly 

less time

N/A

Social media
Please select only one 
item

Newsletters
Please select only one 
item

Meetings
Please select only one 
item

Surgeries
Please select only one 
item

Other
Please select only one 
item

17 Do you feel the balance above is right for you to communicate effectively with 
your constituents?
Please select an option:

Page 61



Please select only one item

 Yes

 No

Why do you think this is?

18 Is there anything else about your experience, and the activities you undertake as 
a Rochdale Councillor, that you would like to tell us about?

Please comment below

About You
As part of the Council's submission to the Local Government Boundary Commission, 
information will be included regarding the extent to which elected members of the Council 

Page 62



reflect the diversity of our communities.. You are not required to complete the Equalities 
section of this survey and please note that this information will be collated separately from 
your survey response, however by providing this
information you will assist the Council to provide as much information as possible to the 
LGBCE.

19 What is your gender?
Please select only one item

 Female

 Male

 Prefer not to say

20 Which age group are you in?

 Please select only one item

 0-19

 20-29

 30-39

 40-49

 50-59

 Over 60

21 Which group best describes your ethnicity?
Please select only one item

 White: British

 White: English

 White: Welsh

 White: Scottish

Page 63



 White: Northern Irish

 White: Irish

 Any Other White Background

 Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Group

 Asian/Asian British: Indian

 Asian/Asian British: Pakistani

 Asian/Asian British: Bangladeshi

 Asian/Asian British: Kashmiri

 Asian/Asian British: Chinese

 Any Other Asian Background

 Black/African/Caribbean/Black British: African

 Black/African/Caribbean/Black British: Caribbean

 Any Other Black/African/Caribbean Background

 Arab

 Prefer not to say

 Any other ethnic group (please specify below)

 Other Ethnicity

Page 64



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

1

Appendix 3 - Forecasting Technical Report

Introduction

1.1 For the electoral review of Rochdale there is a requirement for the 
Council to understand the future electoral balance of the borough. The 
submission requires a projected six year electoral forecast from 2020 
to 2026.

1.2 The Local Government Boundary Commission for England have a 
statutory duty to ensure that all of its reviews are based on robust 
forecasts of future electorates. 

1.3 Calculating the future population and understanding electorate change 
allows the Council to direct services within the borough and ensure a 
balance in the number and distribution of electors within the wards of 
Rochdale.

1.4 This technical report explains how the forecasted electorate has been 
calculated and in particular explains the methodology and supporting 
data that was utilised. 

Methodology

1.5 To understand the future electorate of the borough a methodology 
was used to calculate the forecasted changes and ensure a robust 
result which is reflective of the known future housing planning and 
historic patterns of population change within the borough.

1.6 The LGBCE provide electoral forecasting guidance which was used as 
the foundation of the methodology adopted in Rochdale. Unlike other 
authorities Rochdale Borough Council does not invest in software that 
tracks population change between census years.

1.7 Published data from the Office of National Statistics were considered 
for the methodology process such as sub-national population 
projections as well as the mid-year population estimates for Rochdale. 
Census data was considered but due to the last published date of 2011 
couldn’t be used effectively.

1.8 Unfortunately the mid-year estimates (MYE) appeared to be too low 
for Rochdale. This was proved as the cleansed internal electoral 
register showed more people aged 18+ and eligible to vote in some 
wards than there were actual people in the ward according to the MYE. 
Manchester City Council experienced a similar issue when conducting 
their review.

Page 65



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

2

1.9 The formula below, provided by LGBCE, was utilised as part of the 
forecasting methodology. This was developed at polling district level 
and then up scaled to ward level.

1.10 There are two main elements to the formula 
 Change in electorate over time
 Change in relation to new housing

1.11 In order to capture the trend in natural demographic change; the 
difference in electorate from 2014 to 2020 was added on to the 
current published electorate 2020. This is based on the fact that the 
rate of electoral registrations over the next six years will continue in 
the same pattern as it has done in the last six years.

1.12 New housing development was then considered. The expected 
housing growth in an area minus any expected demolitions was added 
to the forecast. This figure was then subtracted from the number of 
net dwellings developed in the past six years. The reason for the 
subtraction was to account for additional housing growth in the area 
on top of what would have been developed anyway. All housing 
information was provided by the Council’s planning department. 

1.13 The additional new houses forecasted in an area was then multiplied 
against the ratio of electors to housing in an area. This essentially 
provides the future number of electors likely to live in the new 
housing. 

1.14 To make the elector ratio more robust the difference between the 

Page 66



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

3

elector ratios in 2020 to 2014 was then added to the elector ratio in 
2020. This captured the change in elector ratio in the last six years and 
applied it to the next six years. Elector ratio formulas have been 
applied at polling district level.

1.15 Finally the additional electors through demographic change were 
added to the additional electors from housing planning change 
providing a viable number of forecasted electors in 2026. 

1.16 A combination of other methodologies were also considered in regards 
to forecasting; the one that was adopted for the submission was 
deemed the most resilient in particular when validating the overall 
figures produced against the electoral registration trend over the last 
six years (see table below).

2014 2020 2026 (forecast)
Electorate % diff Electorate % diff Electorate % diff

160410 N/A 167097 4.2% 175323 4.9%

Summary

1.17 The methodology used provides estimates regarding the forecasted 
future electorate that are timely and robust that should improve on 
those that are available nationally. 

1.18 The future distribution of electors at ward and polling district level are 
highlighted in Appendix A and Appendix B respectively. 

1.19 All formulas and working has been approved and validated by the cross 
party member steering group.

Page 67



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

4

Appendix A - Ward Level Forecast

P
age 68



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

5

Appendix B - Polling District Level Forecast

Ward Electoral 
District

Published 
Electorate 
(Feb 2020)

Published 
Electorate 
(Dec 2014)

Change in 
Electorate in 
last six years

Initial 
Future 

electorate 
forecast

Current 
Dwellings 

2019

Net new 
dwellings 

expected in 
the next 6 

years

Net new 
dwellings 
created in 
the last 6 

years

New 
housing 

additions

Electors 
per 

dwelling

Electors 
per 

dwelling 
2014

New 
Forecast

Additional 
Electors 

from new 
housing

Initial 
future 

electorate

Balderstone & Kirkholt 1 DA 1,091 1,048 43 1,134 635 14 0 14 1.72 1.44 2.00 27 1,161
Balderstone & Kirkholt 2 DB 1,113 1,090 23 1,136 784 0 16 -16 1.42 1.19 1.65 -26 1,110
Balderstone & Kirkholt 3 DC 1,389 1,269 120 1,509 729 147 22 125 1.91 1.56 2.25 282 1,791
Balderstone & Kirkholt 4 DD 2,400 2,045 355 2,755 1,366 74 194 -120 1.76 1.56 1.96 -235 2,520
Balderstone & Kirkholt 5 DE 652 654 -2 650 330 6 0 6 1.98 1.86 2.09 13 663
Balderstone & Kirkholt 6 DF 1,522 1,433 89 1,611 972 247 -73 245 1.57 1.26 1.87 460 2,071
Balderstone & Kirkholt  8,167 7,539 628 8,795 4,816 488 159 254    520 9,315
               
Bamford 1 HA 2,311 2,138 173 2,484 1,283 8 0 7 1.80 1.48 2.12 14 2,498
Bamford 2 HB 691 665 26 717 382 14 0 14 1.81 1.54 2.08 29 746
Bamford 3 HC 3,094 3,102 -8 3,086 1,585 40 -1 39 1.95 1.81 2.09 82 3,168
Bamford 4 HD 1,902 1,893 9 1,911 962 9 0 9 1.98 1.81 2.15 19 1,930
Bamford  7,998 7,798 200 8,198 4,212 71 -1 69    144 8,342
               
Castleton 1 EA 2,172 2,174 -2 2,170 1,390 102 26 76 1.56 1.35 1.77 134 2,304
Castleton 2 EB 2,060 2,067 -7 2,053 1,103 6 122 -116 1.87 1.67 2.07 -240 1,813
Castleton 3 EC 2,061 1,878 183 2,244 1,249 58 0 58 1.65 1.50 1.80 103 2,347
Castleton 4 ED 913 914 -1 912 483 5 0 5 1.89 1.67 2.11 10 922
Castleton 5 EE 448 426 22 470 234 0 0 0 1.91 1.70 2.13 0 470
Castleton 6 EF 452 447 5 457 247 30 0 30 1.83 1.64 2.02 60 517
Castleton  8,106 7,906 200 8,306 4,706 200 148 52    68 8,374
               
Central Rochdale 1 GA 1,019 1,224 -205 814 1,039 -587 -100 -587 0.98 0.87 1.09 -643 171
Central Rochdale 2 GB 1,681 1,499 182 1,863 1,031 52 45 7 1.63 1.19 2.07 14 1,877
Central Rochdale 3 GC 1,029 1,035 -6 1,023 627 5 10 -5 1.64 1.45 1.83 -10 1,013
Central Rochdale 4 GD 2,098 1,893 205 2,303 968 55 59 -4 2.17 1.77 2.56 -10 2,293
Central Rochdale 5 GE 850 734 116 966 359 16 61 -45 2.37 2.29 2.44 -110 856
Central Rochdale 6 GF 1,157 1,075 82 1,239 494 4 4 0 2.34 1.93 2.76 1 1,240
Central Rochdale  7,834 7,460 374 8,208 4,518 -455 79 -634    -758 7,450
               
East Middleton 1 NA 2,220 2,151 69 2,289 1,221 56 8 48 1.82 1.58 2.06 98 2,387
East Middleton 2 NB 2,290 2,389 -99 2,191 1,387 14 5 9 1.65 1.56 1.75 16 2,207
East Middleton 3 NC 1,937 1,853 84 2,021 1,202 8 0 8 1.61 1.36 1.86 14 2,035
East Middleton 4 ND 1,791 1,632 159 1,950 1,121 166 110 56 1.60 1.47 1.73 97 2,047
East Middleton  8,238 8,025 213 8,451 4,931 244 123 121    226 8,677
               

P
age 69



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

6

Healey 1 AA 2,999 2,893 106 3,105 1,590 9 7 2 1.89 1.68 2.09 4 3,109
Healey 2 AB 2,312 2,294 18 2,330 1,282 3 0 3 1.80 1.60 2.01 6 2,336
Healey 3 AC 1,263 1,224 39 1,302 644 0 5 -5 1.96 1.73 2.19 -11 1,291
Healey 4 AD 1,632 1,673 -41 1,591 931 22 11 11 1.75 1.64 1.87 21 1,612
Healey  8,206 8,084 122 8,328 4,447 34 23 11    21 8,349
               
Hopwood 1 MA 862 840 22 884 570 0 0 0 1.51 1.25 1.78 0 884
Hopwood 2 MB 2,046 2,045 1 2,047 1,026 0 0 0 1.99 1.76 2.23 0 2,047
Hopwood 3 MC 2,752 2,813 -61 2,691 1,514 108 -1 108 1.82 1.68 1.96 212 2,903
Hopwood 4 ME 2,163 1,993 170 2,333 1,417 310 88 222 1.53 1.39 1.66 370 2,703
Hopwood 5 MF 889 820 69 958 599 0 40 -40 1.48 1.28 1.69 -67 891
Hopwood  8,712 8,511 201 8,913 5,126 418 127 290    514 9,427
               
Kingsway 1 BA 2,208 2,077 131 2,339 1,190 9 38 -29 1.86 1.44 2.27 -66 2,273
Kingsway 2 BB 1,419 1,359 60 1,479 769 5 6 -1 1.85 1.52 2.17 -2 1,477
Kingsway 3 BC 1,586 1,137 449 2,035 801 15 181 -166 1.98 1.74 2.22 -368 1,667
Kingsway 4 BD 1,401 1,278 123 1,524 717 4 0 4 1.95 1.54 2.37 9 1,533
Kingsway 5 BE 1,354 1,377 -23 1,331 742 1 0 1 1.82 1.64 2.01 2 1,333
Kingsway 6 BF 1,454 1,361 93 1,547 785 6 9 -3 1.85 1.55 2.15 -6 1,541
Kingsway  9,422 8,589 833 10,255 5,004 40 234 -194    -431 9,824
               
Littleborough Lakeside 1 RA 780 788 -8 772 500 46 1 45 1.56 1.36 1.76 80 852
Littleborough Lakeside 2 RB 1,316 1,209 107 1,423 764 4 104 -100 1.72 1.50 1.94 -195 1,228
Littleborough Lakeside 3 RC 1,411 1,258 153 1,564 776 6 0 6 1.82 1.56 2.08 12 1,576
Littleborough Lakeside 4 RD 1,912 1,865 47 1,959 1,203 121 35 85 1.59 1.37 1.80 153 2,112
Littleborough Lakeside 5 RE 2,671 2,703 -32 2,639 1,443 6 1 4 1.85 1.71 1.99 9 2,648
Littleborough Lakeside  8,090 7,823 267 8,357 4,686 183 141 40    59 8,416
               
Milkstone & Deeplish 1 CA 849 789 60 909 351 115 0 115 2.42 2.00 2.84 325 1,234
Milkstone & Deeplish 2 CB 1,905 1,831 74 1,979 922 10 0 10 2.07 1.72 2.41 23 2,002
Milkstone & Deeplish 3 CC 1,872 1,820 52 1,924 781 1 9 -8 2.40 2.20 2.60 -21 1,903
Milkstone & Deeplish 4 CD 683 628 55 738 391 7 1 6 1.75 1.44 2.06 12 750
Milkstone & Deeplish 5 CE 2,944 2,721 223 3,167 1,586 184 40 144 1.86 1.48 2.23 320 3,487
Milkstone & Deeplish  8,253 7,789 464 8,717 4,031 316 50 266    660 9,377
               
Milnrow & Newhey 1 SA 1,017 1,007 10 1,027 505 1 12 -11 2.01 1.86 2.16 -24 1,003
Milnrow & Newhey 2 SB 1,229 1,197 32 1,261 654 38 7 31 1.88 1.70 2.06 64 1,325
Milnrow & Newhey 3 SC 3,363 3,331 32 3,395 1,916 86 2 84 1.76 1.52 1.99 167 3,562
Milnrow & Newhey 4 SD 2,527 2,447 80 2,607 1,476 12 61 -57 1.71 1.58 1.85 -105 2,502
Milnrow & Newhey  8,136 7,982 154 8,290 4,551 137 82 47    102 8,392
               
Norden 1 JA 2,298 2,230 68 2,366 1,081 1 0 1 2.13 1.85 2.40 2 2,368
Norden 2 JB 2,294 2,290 4 2,298 1,128 0 0 -1 2.03 1.85 2.22 -2 2,296
Norden 3 JC 2,801 2,803 -2 2,799 1,550 17 53 -36 1.81 1.64 1.97 -71 2,728
Norden 4 JD 576 515 61 637 330 16 0 16 1.75 1.55 1.94 31 668

P
age 70



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

7

Norden  7,969 7,838 131 8,100 4,089 34 53 -20    -40 8,060
               
North Heywood 1 LA 2,020 1,723 297 2,317 1,114 9 4 5 1.81 1.48 2.14 11 2,328
North Heywood 2 LB 2,102 2,057 45 2,147 1,417 15 198 -183 1.48 1.32 1.65 -301 1,846
North Heywood 3 LC 894 903 -9 885 589 80 3 77 1.52 1.32 1.72 132 1,017
North Heywood 4 LD 2,489 2,301 188 2,677 1,600 108 56 52 1.56 1.33 1.79 94 2,771
North Heywood 5 LF 633 680 -47 586 444 55 -93 -10 1.43 1.05 1.81 -18 568
North Heywood  8,138 7,664 474 8,612 5,164 268 168 -58    -82 8,530
               
North Middleton 1 QA 566 554 12 578 291 0 1 -1 1.95 1.79 2.10 -2 576
North Middleton 2 QB 1,100 1,114 -14 1,086 752 13 6 7 1.46 1.28 1.65 12 1,098
North Middleton 3 QC 860 851 9 869 528 0 2 -2 1.63 1.38 1.88 -4 865
North Middleton 4 QD 3,521 3,518 3 3,524 1,877 24 38 -14 1.88 1.65 2.10 -29 3,495
North Middleton 5 QE 1,576 1,600 -24 1,552 1,048 29 0 29 1.50 1.35 1.66 47 1,599
North Middleton 6 QF 254 266 -12 242 188 13 0 13 1.35 1.29 1.41 18 260
North Middleton  7,877 7,903 -26 7,851 4,684 79 47 32    42 7,893
               
Smallbridge & Firgrove 1 IA 1,059 1,048 11 1,070 684 6 0 6 1.55 1.33 1.77 11 1,081
Smallbridge & Firgrove 2 IB 1,797 1,775 22 1,819 1,065 4 1 3 1.69 1.46 1.92 6 1,825
Smallbridge & Firgrove 3 IC 920 834 86 1,006 468 11 8 3 1.97 1.56 2.37 6 1,012
Smallbridge & Firgrove 4 ID 1,465 1,364 101 1,566 699 123 16 107 2.10 1.72 2.47 265 1,831
Smallbridge & Firgrove 5 IE 1,197 1,223 -26 1,171 745 39 -20 39 1.61 1.29 1.92 75 1,246
Smallbridge & Firgrove 6 IF 1,850 1,907 -57 1,793 1,228 8 0 8 1.51 1.33 1.68 13 1,806
Smallbridge & Firgrove  8,288 8,151 137 8,425 4,889 191 5 166    376 8,801
               
South Middleton 1 OA 1,956 2,014 -58 1,898 1,238 25 2 23 1.58 1.44 1.72 39 1,937
South Middleton 2 OB 1,293 1,283 10 1,303 809 4 0 4 1.60 1.42 1.78 8 1,311
South Middleton 3 OC 1,793 1,785 8 1,801 851 2 1 0 2.11 1.94 2.28 0 1,801
South Middleton 4 OD 1,672 1,707 -35 1,637 878 0 0 0 1.90 1.81 1.99 0 1,637
South Middleton 5 OE 1,285 1,312 -27 1,258 670 0 0 0 1.92 1.79 2.04 0 1,258
South Middleton  7,999 8,101 -102 7,897 4,446 31 3 27    47 7,944
               
Spotland & Falinge 1 FA 472 451 21 493 213 0 0 0 2.22 1.95 2.48 0 493
Spotland & Falinge 2 FB 1,219 1,225 -6 1,213 701 0 0 0 1.74 1.56 1.92 0 1,213
Spotland & Falinge 3 FC 1,403 898 505 1,908 829 4 0 4 1.69 1.40 1.98 8 1,916
Spotland & Falinge 4 FD 1,623 1,976 -353 1,270 973 4 36 -32 1.67 1.48 1.86 -59 1,211
Spotland & Falinge 5 FE 1,567 1,417 150 1,717 829 24 19 5 1.89 1.45 2.33 11 1,728
Spotland & Falinge 6 FF 2,332 2,151 181 2,513 1,103 41 47 -6 2.11 1.69 2.54 -15 2,498
Spotland & Falinge  8,616 8,118 498 9,114 4,648 73 102 -29    -55 9,059
               
Wardle & West Littleborough 1 TA 999 941 58 1,057 526 0 0 0 1.90 1.64 2.16 0 1,057
Wardle & West Littleborough 2 TB 1,365 1,336 29 1,394 749 95 0 95 1.82 1.63 2.01 191 1,585
Wardle & West Littleborough 3 TC 2,058 2,085 -27 2,031 1,142 11 0 11 1.80 1.62 1.99 22 2,053
Wardle & West Littleborough 4 TD 2,358 1,759 599 2,957 1,223 20 378 -358 1.93 1.61 2.24 -803 2,154
Wardle & West Littleborough 5 TE 1,467 1,481 -14 1,453 842 21 0 21 1.74 1.58 1.90 40 1,493

P
age 71



Electoral Review of Rochdale__________________________________________________________

8

Wardle & West Littleborough  8,247 7,602 645 8,892 4,482 147 378 -231    -549 8,343
               
West Heywood 1 KA 339 339 0 339 189 12 150 -138 1.79 1.64 1.95 -268 71
West Heywood 2 KB 3,610 3,658 -48 3,562 2,017 8 27 -19 1.79 1.56 2.02 -38 3,524
West Heywood 3 KC 2,057 1,775 282 2,339 1,232 23 14 9 1.67 1.30 2.04 19 2,358
West Heywood 4 KD 1,171 990 181 1,352 702 0 1 -1 1.67 1.50 1.84 -2 1,350
West Heywood 5 KE 1,976 2,055 -79 1,897 1,276 3 172 -169 1.55 1.41 1.69 -285 1,612
West Heywood  9,153 8,817 336 9,489 5,416 46 364 -318    -575 8,914
               
West Middleton 1 PA 162 153 9 171 89 1 0 1 1.82 1.58 2.06 2 173
West Middleton 2 PB 651 625 26 677 335 15 0 15 1.94 1.69 2.20 33 710
West Middleton 3 PC 2,264 1,678 586 2,850 1,412 159 172 -13 1.60 1.37 1.84 -23 2,827
West Middleton 4 PD 946 968 -22 924 550 7 0 7 1.72 1.48 1.96 14 938
West Middleton 5 PE 1,941 1,804 137 2,078 1,161 0 46 -46 1.67 1.40 1.94 -89 1,989
West Middleton 6 PF 2,350 2,255 95 2,445 1,443 805 65 739 1.63 1.48 1.78 1314 3,759
West Middleton 7 PG 1,334 1,227 107 1,441 779 0 0 0 1.71 1.38 2.04 0 1,441
West Middleton  9,648 8,710 938 10,586 5,769 987 283 703    1251 11,837

P
age 72



Audit Strategy Memorandum
Rochdale Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2020

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



CONTENTS

1. Engagement and responsibilities summary

2. Your audit engagement team

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

4. Significant risks and key judgement areas

5. Value for Money

6. Fees for audit and other services

7. Our commitment to independence

8. Materiality and misstatements

Appendix A – Key communication points

Appendix B - Forthcoming accounting and other issues

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Rochdale Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit and

Governance Committee as the appropriate sub-committee charged with governance . No responsibility is accepted to any other person in

respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a

third party.

2
Page 74



Mazars LLP

One St Peter’s Square

Manchester

M2 3DE

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale

OL16 1XU

24 February 2020

Dear Sirs / Madams

Audit Strategy Memorandum – Year ending 31 March 2020

We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for Rochdale Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2020

The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit approach, highlight significant audit risks and areas of key judgements and

provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its

clients, Section 7 of this document also summarises our considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors.

We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:

• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;

• sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;

• providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

• ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external

operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing Rochdale Borough Council which may affect the audit, including the

likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.

This document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, is the basis for discussion of our

audit approach, and any questions or input you may have on our approach or role as auditor.

This document also contains specific appendices that outline our key communications with you during the course of the audit, and

forthcoming accounting issues and other issues that may be of interest.

Client service is extremely important to us and we strive to continuously provide technical excellence with the highest level of service

quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you have any concerns or comments about this

document or audit approach, please contact me on 0161 238 9248.

Yours faithfully

Karen Murray

Mazars LLP

3
Page 75



1. ENGAGEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITIES SUMMARY

Overview of engagement

We are appointed to perform the external audit of Rochdale Borough Council (the Council) for the year to 31 March 2020. The scope of

our engagement is set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit

Appointments Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-

of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/

Our responsibilities

Our responsibilities are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice

issued by the National Audit Office (NAO), as outlined below:

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance, of their responsibilities. The responsibility for safeguarding
assets and for the prevention and detection of fraud, error and non-compliance with law or regulations rests with both those charged with
governance and management. In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we plan and perform our audit so as to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. However our audit should not be relied upon to identify all such misstatements.

As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to enquire of those charged with governance as to their knowledge of

instances of fraud, the risk of fraud and their views on management controls that mitigate the fraud risks.

The Council is required to prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis by the Code of Practice on Local Authority

Accounting. As auditors, we are required to consider the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption in the preparation of

the financial statements and the adequacy of disclosures made.

For the purpose of our audit, we have identified the Audit and Governance Committee as those charged with governance.

We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements.

Our audit is planned and performed so to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free

from material error and give a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the Council for the

year.

Going 

concern

Fraud

We are required to conclude whether the Council has proper arrangements in place to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in it its use of resources. We discuss our approach to Value for Money work further 

in section 5 of this report.

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the opportunity to question us 

about the accounting records of the Council and consider any objection made to the accounts.  We also have a 

broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that are unique to the audit of local authorities in the United 

Kingdom.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

We report to the NAO on the consistency of the Council’s financial statements with its Whole of Government 

Accounts (WGA) submission.

Audit 

opinion

Reporting 

to the 

NAO

Value for 

Money

Electors’ 

rights

4
Page 76

https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/


2. YOUR AUDIT ENGAGEMENT TEAM

• Karen Murray - Partner

• karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

• 0161 238 9248

• Daniel Watson – Senior Manager

• daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk

• 0161 238 9349

5

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 77

mailto:karen.murray@mazars.co.uk
mailto:daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk


3. AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE

Audit scope

Our audit approach is designed to provide an audit that complies with all professional requirements.

Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and

professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance with the terms of our engagement. Our work is focused on those

aspects of your business which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those affected by management

judgement and estimation, application of new accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which

have been found to contain material errors in the past.

Audit approach

Our audit approach is a risk-based approach primarily driven by the risks we consider to result in a higher risk of material misstatement of

the financial statements. Once we have completed our risk assessment, we develop our audit strategy and design audit procedures in

response to this assessment.

If we conclude that appropriately-designed controls are in place then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide

controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more efficient to do so, we may take a wholly substantive approach to

our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and

comprise tests of details (of classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures) and substantive analytical procedures.

Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our evaluation of the operating effectiveness of

controls, we are required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and

disclosure.

Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material

misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and how we define a misstatement is explained in more detail in

section 4.

The diagram below outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit.

• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial 

statements

• Final partner review

• Agreeing content of letter of representation

• Reporting to Audit and Governance 

Committee 

• Reviewing post balance sheet events

• Signing our opinion 

• Initial opinion and value for money risk 

assessments

• Updating our understanding of the Council

• Documenting systems and controls

• Walkthrough procedures

• Development of our audit strategy

• Agreement of timetables

• Preliminary analytical procedures

• Considering proposed accounting 

treatments and accounting policies

• Controls testing, including general 

and application IT controls

• Early substantive testing of transactions

• Review of draft financial statements

• Reassessment of audit strategy,              

revising as necessary

• Delivering our planned audit testing

• Continuous communication on emerging 

issues

• Clearance meeting

Planning

Jan – Feb 2020

Interim

March 2020

Fieldwork

June – July 
2020

Completion

July 2020

6

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 78



3. AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE (CONTINUED)

Reliance on internal audit

Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and timing of our audit procedures.

We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their work prior to the commencement of our controls evaluation

procedures.

Where we intend to rely on the work of internal audit, we will evaluate the work performed by your internal audit team and perform our own

audit procedures to determine its adequacy for our audit.

Management’s and our experts

Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Council’s financial statements. We also use experts to assist us

to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on specific items of account.

Items of account Management's expert Our expert

Defined benefit liability Hyman Robertson Actuaries
PwC, consulting actuary, on behalf of

National Audit Office

Property, plant and equipment valuation Rochdale BC valuations team

We will use available third party

information to challenge the key

valuation assumptions.

Financial instrument disclosures Link Asset Services

We will review Link Asset Services’s

methodology to gain assurance that

the fair value disclosures of the

Council’s financial assets and liabilities

are materially correct.

Valuation of shareholding in Manchester

Airport Holdings Ltd.
BDO LLP

Mazars’ financial reporting valuations

team

7

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 79



4. MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS

Summary of initial materiality thresholds

Materiality

Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of financial statements as a

whole. Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and nature of a misstatement, or a

combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of the common financial information needs of users as a

group and not on specific individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of the financial information

needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume that users:

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts;

• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, judgement and the consideration

of future events; and

• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors.

Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which provides a basis for

determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and assessing the risk of material misstatement and

determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which uncorrected misstatements, either

individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial.

We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of information that would have caused

us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information at the planning stage.

Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of gross revenue expenditure We will identify a figure for materiality but identify

separate levels for procedures designed to detect individual errors, and also a level above which all identified errors will be reported to the

Audit and Governance Committee.

We consider that gross revenue expenditure remains the key focus of users of the financial statements and, as such, we base our

materiality levels around this benchmark.

We expect to set a materiality threshold at approximately 2% of gross revenue expenditure.

8

Threshold Initial threshold (£’000s)

Overall materiality £12,000

Performance materiality £9,600

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee £360

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 80



4. MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Based on the prior year financial statements we anticipate the overall materiality for the year ending 31st March 2020 to be in the region of

£12m ( £12m in the prior year).

After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at an appropriate level.

Performance Materiality

Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the financial statements as a whole to 

reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality 

for the financial statements as a whole. Our initial assessment of performance materiality is based on low inherent risk, meaning that we 

have applied 80% of overall materiality as performance materiality. 

We have also calculated materiality for specific classes of transactions, balances or disclosures where we determine that misstatements 

of a lesser amount than materiality for the financial statements as a whole, could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of 

users taken on the basis of the financial statements.  We have set specific materiality for the following items of account:

*Reflecting movement from one salary band to another

After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at an appropriate level.

Misstatements

We aggregate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We set a level of triviality for individual errors

identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we

consider would not need to be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material effect

on the financial statements. Based on our preliminary assessment of overall materiality, our proposed triviality threshold is £360,000

based on 3% of overall materiality. If you have any queries about this please do not hesitate to raise these with Karen Murray.

Reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee

To comply with International Standards on Auditing (UK), the following three types of audit differences will be presented to the Audit and

Governance Committee:

• summary of adjusted audit differences;

• summary of unadjusted audit differences; and

• summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

9

Item of account Specific materiality (£’000s)

Officer Remuneration bandings £5,000*

Related party transactions £50,000

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 81



5. SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS

Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified relevant risks to the audit of financial

statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as significant, enhanced or standard, as defined below:

The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the table below, highlights those risks which we deem to be significant. We have

summarised our audit response to these risks on the next page.

Significant risk A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s judgment, requires

special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the entity’s controls,

including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement at audit assertion level other than a

significant risk. Enhanced risks incorporate but may not be limited to:

• key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are not

considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and

• other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

Standard risk This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic processing and

require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of material misstatement, there are

no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential misstatements or the

likelihood of the risk occurring.

10

R
is

k 
L

ik
el

ih
o

o
d

High

HighLow

Financial impact

2

3

1

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Significant Risk

1 Management override of control

2 Property, plant and equipment valuation

3 Defined benefit liability valuation

Page 82



5. SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS 
(CONTINUED)

We provide more detail on the identified risks and our testing approach with respect to significant risks in the table below. An audit is a

dynamic process; should we change our view of risk or approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will

report this to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Significant risks

Description of risk Planned response

1 Management override of controls

Management at various levels within an organisation 

are in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 

their ability to manipulate accounting records and 

prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 

controls that otherwise appear to be operating 

effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in which 

such override could occur there is a risk of material 

misstatement due to fraud on all audits. 

We plan to address the management override of controls risk 

through performing audit work over accounting estimates, journal 

entries and significant transactions outside the normal course of 

business or otherwise unusual.

2 Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment (land 

and buildings including investment properties)

The CIPFA Code requires that where assets are 

subject to revaluation, their year end carrying value 

should reflect the appropriate fair value at that date. 

The Council has adopted a rolling revaluation model 

which sees all land and buildings revalued over a 

four year cycle. 

The valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment and 

Investment Properties involves the use of a 

management expert (the valuer), and incorporates 

assumptions and estimates which impact materially 

on the reported value. There are risks relating to the 

valuation process which reflect the significant impact 

of the valuation judgements and assumptions and the 

degree of estimation uncertainty.

In addition, as a result of the rolling programme of 

revaluations, there is a risk that individual assets 

which have not been revalued for up to three years 

are not valued at their materially correct fair value.

In relation to the assets which have been revalued during 2019/20 we 

will: assess the Council’s valuer’s qualifications, objectivity and 

independence to carry out such valuations, and review the valuation 

methodology used, including testing the underlying data and 

assumptions. 

We will review the approach that the Council has adopted to address 

the risk that assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 are materially 

misstated and consider the robustness of that approach in light of the 

valuation information reported by the Council’s valuers.

In addition, we will consider movement in market indices between 

revaluation dates and the year end in order to determine whether 

these indicate that fair values have moved materially over that time.

11

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 83



5. SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS 
(CONTINUED)

Significant risks (continued)

Revenue recognition

International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 240 includes a rebuttable presumption that the fraud risk from revenue recognition is a significant 

audit risk.

We recognise that the nature of revenue in local government differs significantly to the sources of income in the private sector. We also 

consider that there are limited incentives and opportunities to manipulate the way income is recognised in local government.

Based on our understanding of the Council’s revenue streams we have rebutted the presumption that revenue recognition is a significant 

risk at the Council. Our testing of revenue is focused on our standard procedures and does not incorporate specific work on the risk of 

fraud in recognising revenue.

Description of risk Planned response

3 Defined benefit liability valuation

The net pension liability represents a material 

element of the Council’s balance sheet. The Council 

is an admitted body of Greater Manchester Pension 

Fund, which had its last triennial valuation completed 

as at 31 March 2019.

The valuation of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme relies on a number of assumptions, most 

notably around the actuarial assumptions, and 

actuarial methodology which results in the Council’s 

overall valuation.

There are financial assumptions and demographic 

assumptions used in the calculation of the Council’s 

valuation, such as the discount rate, inflation rates 

and mortality rates. The assumptions should also 

reflect the profile of the Council’s employees, and 

should be based on appropriate data. The basis of 

the assumptions is derived on a consistent basis 

year to year, or updated to reflect any changes.

There is a risk that the assumptions and 

methodology used in valuing the Council’s pension 

obligation are not reasonable or appropriate to the 

Council’s circumstances. This could have a material 

impact to the net pension liability in 2019/20.

As part of our work we will review the controls that the Council has in 

place over the information sent to the Scheme Actuary, including the 

Council’s process and controls with respect to the assumptions used 

in the valuation. We will also evaluate the competency, objectivity and 

independence of the scheme Actuary, Hymans Robertson.

We will review the appropriateness of the methodology applied, and 

the key assumptions included within the valuation, compare them to 

expected ranges, utilising the information provided by PwC, 

consulting actuary engaged by the National Audit Office. We will 

review the methodology applied in the valuation of the liability by 

Hymans Robertson.

12

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 84



5. SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS 
(CONTINUED)

Key areas of management judgement and enhanced risks

Key areas of management judgement include accounting estimates which are material but are not considered to give rise to a significant

risk of material misstatement. These areas of management judgement represent other areas of audit emphasis.

Area of management judgement / enhanced risk Planned response

1 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme

The Council has no new PFI schemes in 2019/20, 

and continues to make judgements that result in the 

Council accounting for the PFI assets and liabilities in 

its financial statements.

We will consider the continued accounting treatment of the PFI 

scheme assets and liabilities as being in the Council’s financial 

statements

2 Valuation of investment in Manchester Airport 

Holdings Limited 

The Council uses an external valuation expert to 

determine the value of its investment in Manchester 

Airport Holdings Limited at 31 March 2020. The 

valuation is determined according to a methodology 

and applying assumptions. Council officers challenge 

the valuation assumptions and reach judgements on 

the valuation to include in the financial statements.

Our approach to auditing the investment in Manchester Airport 

Holdings Limited includes the involvement of the Mazars in-house 

valuation team. 

The Mazars in-house valuation team will review the methodology and 

key assumptions used by management’s expert, considering the 

appropriateness of the methodology and the reasonableness of the 

assumptions used.

13

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 85



6. VALUE FOR MONEY 

Our approach to Value for Money

We are required to form a conclusion as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and

effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out, and sets 

out the overall criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 

and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’  

To assist auditors in reaching a conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:

• informed decision making;

• sustainable resource deployment; and

• working with partners and other third parties. 

A summary of the work we undertake to reach our conclusion is provided below:

Significant Value for Money risks

The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work at the planning stage to identify whether or not a Value for Money (VFM) exists.  Risk, 

in the context of our VFM work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place at the 

Council being inadequate. As outlined above, we draw on our deep understanding of the Council and its partners, the local and national 

economy and wider knowledge of the public sector.

For the 2019/20 financial year, we have set out overleaf a significant risk to our VFM conclusion. When we have completed our VFM 

planning considerations we will report any additional significant risks to the Audit & Governance Committee.

14

Risk assessment

NAO Guidance

Sector-wide issues

Risk mitigation work Other procedures

Consider the work of regulators

Planned procedures to mitigate 

the risk of forming an incorrect 

conclusion on arrangements

Consider the Annual 

Governance StatementYour operational and business 

risks

Consistency review and reality 

checkKnowledge from other audit work

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 86



6. VALUE FOR MONEY (CONTINUED) 

Significant Value for Money risks (continued)

Description of  significant risk Planned response

Financial sustainability 

The Council’s medium term financial strategy for the period 2020/21 to 2024/25 

sets out the financial challenges it faces. The mid year reporting for 2019/20 

indicates that the Council’s general services spending is projecting to be 

overspent by £5.9m, placing further pressure on service delivery and increasing 

the use of reserves to support the revenue expenditure.

The Council’s Budget Report 2020/21 identifies a budget gap of £2.0m by 

2022/23 following delivery of identified savings proposals and a transfer from the 

Council’s contingency reserve. The £2.0m forms part of a wider gap within the 

Pooled Fund for Health and Social Care which the Council operates with 

Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG. The gap on the Pooled Fund is 

currently forecast to reach £18.5m by 2021/22.

The continuing challenges the Council faces are not new and are not unique to 

Rochdale Borough Council. The challenges do, however, present a significant 

audit risk in respect of considering the arrangements that the Council has in 

place to deliver financially sustainability over the medium term.

We will review the arrangements the Council has 

in place for ensuring financial resilience, 

specifically that the medium term financial plan 

has taken into consideration factors such as 

future funding sources and levels, levels of other 

income, salary and general inflation, demand 

pressures, restructuring costs and sensitivity 

analysis given the degree of variability in the 

above factors. 

We will review how the Council is working with 

Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG to 

address the ongoing gap on the Pooled Fund for 

Health and Social Care.

We will also review the arrangements in place to 

monitor progress delivering the 2019/20 budget 

and related savings plans.

15

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 87



7. FEES FOR AUDIT AND OTHER SERVICES

Fees for work as the Council’s appointed auditor

At this stage of the audit we are not planning any divergence from the scale fees set by PSAA as communicated in our fee letter of 23

April 2019.

In common with all local government external auditors we are required to carry out additional procedures which were not expected when

fees were set.

Regulatory recommendations

We continually strive to maintain high standards of audit quality. One mechanism for doing this is to consider the outcome of independent

quality reviews, in particular by the Financial Reporting Council, of our audit work and that of other audit suppliers. In particular we are

planning increases in the level of work we do on:

• defined benefit pension schemes; and

• valuation of property, plant and equipment

We will discuss the driving factors with Council officers and the audit fee for 2019/20 will be revisited to reflect the increased level of work

that was not considered when the scale fee was set. Any agreed additional fee is also subject to detailed scrutiny by the PSAA as part of

the approval process.

Fees for non-PSAA work

We have not been engaged by the Council to carry out any addition work over and above the audit of the Council’s statutory audit.

Should we be engaged to undertake any additional work we will consider whether there are any actual, potential or perceived threats to

our independence. Further information about our responsibilities in relation to independence is provided in section 8.

Service 2018/19 fee 2019/20 fee

Code audit work £105,607 £105,007

16

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 88



8. OUR COMMITMENT TO INDEPENDENCE

We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at least annually, in writing, that

we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we communicate any matters or relationship which we

believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the audit team.

Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as auditors, we confirm that in

our professional judgement there are no relationships between us and any of our related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related

entities creating any unacceptable threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your

auditors.

We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with integrity, objectivity and

independence. These policies include:

• all partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

• all new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete computer-based ethics training;

• rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team;

• use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all non-audit services to be approved

in advance by the audit engagement partner.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, and Mazars LLP are

independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if at any time you have concerns or questions about our integrity,

objectivity or independence please discuss these with Karen Murray in the first instance.

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services Karen Murray will undertake appropriate procedures to consider and fully assess the

impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence. Included in this assessment is consideration of Auditor

Guidance Note 01 as issued by the NAO, and the PSAA Terms of Appointment.

No threats to our independence have been identified.

Any emerging independence threats and associated identified safeguards will be communicated in our Audit Completion Report.

17

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 89



APPENDIX A – KEY COMMUNICATION POINTS

ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To

Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs (UK) specifically require us to communicate the following:

Required communication Audit Strategy 

Memorandum

Audit Completion 

Report

Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements and our wider 

responsibilities 

Planned scope and timing of the audit 

Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement 

Our commitment to independence  

Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors 

Materiality and misstatements  

Fees for audit and other services 

Significant deficiencies in internal control 

Significant findings from the audit 

Significant matters discussed with management 

Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of management judgement 

Summary of misstatements 

Management representation letter 

Our proposed draft audit report 

18

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 90



APPENDIX B – FORTHCOMING ACCOUNTING AND OTHER 
ISSUES

Financial reporting changes relevant to 2019/20

There are no significant changes in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting for the 2019/20 financial year.

Financial reporting changes in future years

Accounting standard Year of application Commentary

IFRS 16 – Leases 2020/21 The CIPFA/LASAAC Code Board has determined that the Code of Practice 

on Local Authority Accounting will adopt the principles of IFRS 16 Leases, 

for the first time from 2020/21.

IFRS 16 will replace the existing leasing standard, IAS 17, and will introduce 

significant changes to the way bodies account for leases, which will have 

substantial implications for the majority of public sector bodies.  

The most significant changes will be in respect of lessee accounting (i.e. 

where a body leases property or equipment from another entity).  The 

existing distinction between operating and finance leases will be removed 

and instead, the new standard will require a right of use asset and an 

associated lease liability to be recognised on the lessee’s Balance Sheet. 

In order to meet the requirements of IFRS 16, all local authorities will need 

to undertake a significant project that is likely to be time-consuming and 

potentially complex. There will also be consequential impacts upon capital 

financing arrangements at many authorities which will need to be identified 

and addressed at an early stage of the project. 

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 91



Audit Progress Report
Rochdale Borough Council
March 2020

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



CONTENTS

1. Audit progress

2. National publications

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Rochdale Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit &

Governance Committee. No responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent

must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

2
Page 93



1. AUDIT PROGRESS

Purpose of this report

This report provides the Audit & Governance Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external

auditors.

Audit progress

Since the Committee last met we have:

 Undertaken our audit planning work. This has incorporated:

 Documenting our understanding of the Council’s corporate governance and control framework as it relates to our audit

responsibilities.

 Documenting our understanding of the key financial systems relevant to the financial statements, and the key controls that the

Council has in place to prevent, detect and correct material misstatements to the financial statements.

 Carrying out walkthrough tests of key controls to confirm that they are operating in the manner they have been designed.

 Carrying out detailed testing of transactions for the year to date for payroll expenditure, non-pay expenditure, and Housing

Benefit payments.

 Commenced our detailed work related to our value for money conclusion. This work will continue through to the end of the financial

year.

 Maintained regular liaison with the finance team to understand how the Council is continuing to manage its risks.

 Planned our interim audit visit to carry out further detailed testing of the entries in the draft financial statements. Our interim audit is

due to be completed week commencing 23rd March and will cover work on the Council’s valuation of property, plant and equipment.

Our work is progressing as planned with no delays or unforeseen circumstances to discuss with the Committee. From the work carried 
out to date there are no matters to raise with the Audit & Governance Committee.

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

3
Page 94



2.    NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Publication/update Key points Page

Mazars

1
Mazars’ response to the Brydon 

Review

Mazars’ response to the latest review into the auditing profession 

which was published in December 2019. 
6

2 Annual Transparency Report
Sets out the steps we take to enhance the quality of our audit work 

and ensure that quality is consistent across the firm. 
6

Public Sector Audit Appointments

3
Consultation on 2020/21 scale of audit 

fees
PSAAs annual consultation on the next audit year external audit fees 7

National Audit Office

4 Round-up for Audit Committees Updated ‘round-up’ of resources for Audit Committees 7

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)

5
Local Government Financial Resilience 

index

Online data tool which measures local authorities against a range of 

indicators to assess their level of resilience.
8

6 Financial Management Code
Guidance for good and sustainable financial management in local 

authorities.
8

7 Prudential Property Investment Guidance on prudent investments in commercial properties. 9

8
IFRS9 Financial Instruments: A guide 

for Local Authority practitioners

Updated guidance to assist Councils to comply with the requirements 

of IFRS9
9

9

Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom: 

Guidance Notes for 2019/20 Accounts

Guidance notes to assist Councils to comply with the Code of 

Practice in preparing the 2019/20 financial statements
10

10
IFRS 16 Leases: An Early Guide for 

Local Authority Practitioners

Guidance to assist the preparations for the 2020/21 application of 

IFRS16
11

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

4
Page 95



2.    NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Publication/update Key points Page

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG)

11
Final local government finance 

settlement: England, 2020 to 2021
Announcement of the finance settlement for 2020/21 12

12
Northamptonshire County Council: 

fourth commissioners' report
Report from the appointed commissioner 12

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

5
Page 96



2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – MAZARS

1. Mazars’ response to the Brydon Review, Mazars, December 2019

The Brydon Review is one of four key reviews into the scope and quality of audit, namely: 

• Competition and Market’s Authority (CMA): resilience and competition in the audit market; 

• Kingman’s Review (review of the Financial Reporting Council and regulatory oversight); 

• The Brydon Review (tone and aspirations for the future of the industry); and

• The Redmond Review (quality of local authority financial reporting and external audit). 

The Brydon Review contains various recommendations and essentially recommends a major overhaul of audit which would see the 
creation of a separate ‘corporate auditing profession’, greater focus on fraud detection during audits, and the replacement of the ‘true and 
fair’ concept, with a greater focus on going concern. 

Mazars’ response to the latest Brydon Review report issued in December 2019 is detailed per the link below. 

https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/News-Events/Latest-news/Mazars-response-to-the-Brydon-report

Link to the Brydon Review

Published in December 2019, focusing on the quality and effectiveness of audit. 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-quality-and-effectiveness-of-audit-independent-review

Link to the Kingman’s Review

Published in December 2018, this review recommended the replacement of the Financial Reporting Council with a new independent
statutory regulator, accountable to Parliament. The new regulator will be called the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA).  

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/independent-review-of-the-financial-reporting-council-frc-launches-report

Link to the Redmond Review

At the time of writing this report, the outcome from the Redmond Review has not been published. 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views

2. Annual Transparency Report, Mazars, December 2019

Mazars produces an annual transparency report, setting out the steps we take to enhance the quality of our audit work and ensure that 
quality is consistent across the firm. The report includes: 

• Public Interest Committee Report; 

• UK Governance Council Report; 

• Inspiring Stakeholder Confidence in Audit Quality (including quality monitoring and audit quality indicators); 

• Our risks; and

• Structure, Leadership and Governance. 

Link to the latest report issued in December 2019 is set out below. 

https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/About-us/Corporate-publications/Transparency-reports/Mazars-UK-Transparency-Report-2018-2019

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

6
Page 97

https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/News-Events/Latest-news/Mazars-response-to-the-Brydon-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-quality-and-effectiveness-of-audit-independent-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/independent-review-of-the-financial-reporting-council-frc-launches-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views
https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/About-us/Corporate-publications/Transparency-reports/Mazars-UK-Transparency-Report-2018-2019


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – PSAA

3. Consultation on 2020/21 scale of audit fees, January 2020

PSAA are consulting on the proposed scale of fees for 2020/21 audits.  

The consultation sets out the proposed scale of fees for the work to be undertaken by appointed auditors in respect of the 2020/21 
financial statements at bodies that have opted into PSAA’s national auditor appointment scheme.

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/consultation-on-2020-21-audit-fee-scale/

4. Round-up for Audit Committees, November 2019

This interactive round-up of NAO publications is intended to help Audit Committees, Boards and other users by outlining the latest NAO 
resources for governance and oversight, risk management and strategic management issues. It also sets out how to keep in touch with 
NAO insight on specific issues and/or sectors.

This round-up is designed to make it easy for Audit Committees, Boards and other users to find the NAO resources most helpful for the 
strategic management of public sector organisations. It includes an introduction by Gareth Davies, Comptroller and Auditor General, and 
draws particular attention to publications most useful for governance, oversight and risk management. It is published each autumn and 
spring, covering NAO publications over the previous six months. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/round-up-for-audit-committees/

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

7
Page 98

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/consultation-on-2020-21-audit-fee-scale/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/round-up-for-audit-committees/


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – CIPFA

5. Local Government Financial Resilience index, CIPFA, December 2019

The resilience index is an online data tool which measures local authorities against a range of indicators to assess their level of resilience 
against financial shocks and to support financial decision making. Upper tier authorities are judged against nine indicators including social 
care. 

The indicators measured include: 

• levels of reserves; 

• change in reserves; 

• reserves sustainability; 

• interest payable/net revenue expenditure; 

• gross external debt; 

• social care ratio;

• fees and charges to service expenditure ratio; 

• council tax requirement/net expenditure ratio; and 

• growth above baseline. 

The tool allows for year on year comparisons of each authority’s performance, as well as comparisons with similar and neighbouring 
authorities. Trend analysis is also available for some of the indicators outlined above. 

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-launches-local-government-financial-resilience-index

6. Financial Management Code, CIPFA, October 2019

Strong financial management is an essential part of ensuring public sector finances are sustainable. The Financial Management Code 
(FM Code) provides guidance for good and sustainable financial management in local authorities and aims to provide assurance that they 
are managing resources effectively.

It requires authorities to demonstrate that the processes they have in place satisfy the principles of good financial management. The FM 
Code identifies risks to financial sustainability and introduces a framework of assurance. This framework is built on existing successful 
practices and sets explicit standards of financial management. Complying with the standards set out in the FM Code is the collective 
responsibility of elected members, the chief finance officer and their professional colleagues in the leadership team. Complying with the 
FM Code with help strengthen the framework that surrounds financial decision making.

The FM Code built on elements of other CIPFA codes during its development and its structure and applicability will be familiar to users of 
publications such as The Prudential Code for Capital Finance, Treasury Management in the Public Sector Code of Practice and Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

The Code applies to all local authorities, including police, fire and other authorities.

By following the essential aspects of the FM Code, local authorities are providing evidence to show they are meeting important legislative 
requirements in their jurisdictions.

The first full year of compliance will be 2021/22. This reflects the recognition that organisations will need time to reflect on the contents of 
the Code and can use 2020/21 to demonstrate how they are working towards compliance.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/financial-management-code

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

8
Page 99

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-launches-local-government-financial-resilience-index
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/financial-management-code


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – CIPFA

7. Prudential Property Investment, CIPFA, November 2019

Increasingly there has been a move towards investments in commercial properties, funded by borrowing, with the key driver of this activity 
appearing to be the generation of revenue. This publication provides guidance on making the assessments needed to ensure that such 
acquisitions are prudent and on the risks local authorities must manage when acquiring property. 

Statutory investment guidance from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) last year set out clearly that 
local authorities need to consider the long-term sustainability risk implicit in becoming too dependent on commercial income, or in taking 
out too much debt relative to net service expenditure.

The increased scale of investment in property was recognised by revisions to CIPFA's Prudential Code for Capital Finance and the
Treasury Management Code in 2017, but the growing amounts being borrowed for such a purpose are putting a strain on the creditability 
of the Prudential Framework and reinforce the need to ensure that such acquisitions are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

In addition to the core issue of borrowing in advance of need, which the Prudential Code has very clear provisions on, this publication 
provides guidance on the risk perspective to the practical assessment of prudence and affordability. Those risks could be very difficult to 
manage. Even when these issues are managed and there is reliance on investment income, a potential failure or a downturn of the 
property market may have a direct impact upon local services.

This publication considers such issues and the actions local authorities would need to take to mitigate against such risks.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/prudential-property-investment

8. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: A Guide for Local Authority Practitioners, CIPFA, December 2019

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in its 2018/19 edition, with an 
application date of 1 April 2018.

In order to allow practitioners to prepare in good time, CIPFA issued guidance in 2017 in advance of the 2018/19 Code being published, 
based on a companion publication to the 2017/18 Code: Forthcoming Provisions for IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.

This publication updates the 2017 guidance to reflect:

 provisions in the 2018/19 Code that were not included in the Forthcoming Provisions publication

 changes to the 2019/20 Code resulting from amendments to IFRS 9

 experience of implementing IFRS 9 in the 2018/19 annual accounts.

This guidance provides comprehensive coverage of the requirements of the Code, including recognition, measurement, treatment of gains 
and losses, derecognition and presentation and disclosure in the financial statements.  It also covers statutory reversals and the 
continuing impact of transitional provisions.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/i/ifrs-9-financial-instruments-a-guide-for-local-authority-practitioners

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

9
Page 100

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/prudential-property-investment
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/i/ifrs-9-financial-instruments-a-guide-for-local-authority-practitioners


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – CIPFA

9. Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: Guidance Notes for 2019/20 Accounts, CIPFA, 
November 2019

The guidance notes support Councils in dealing practically with the preparation of the year-end financial statements and reports that 
accompany them. This version provides detailed guidance on the key accounting changes introduced by the 2019/20 Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code), and includes:

 Updates to reflect 2018 IASB Conceptual Framework.

 Guidance on the Code's adoption of the amendments to the financial instruments standard (IFRS 9 Financial Instruments) relating to 
prepayment features with negative compensation.

 Updates to reflect the Code clarifications relating to contracts with lender option borrower option clauses.

 New guidance on the group accounts scope clarification for the disclosure requirements with respect to interests in entities within the 
scope of IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (introduced by the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 
2014 to 2016 Cycle).

 Explanation of the Code approach to drafting amendments (including commentary on when the Code adapts or interprets IFRS).

 Removal of references to Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme following the Scheme closure.

 A new section on the accounting treatment for the apprenticeship levy.

 Updates for the new voluntary transfers presentation (for Scottish local authorities only) in the movement in reserves statement and 
expenditure and funding analysis. This includes the treatment within the reserves.

Example financial statements have been updated to reflect the changes described above.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/c/code-of-practice-on-local-authority-accounting-in-the-united-kingdom-guidance-
notes-for-201920-accounts-online

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

10
Page 101

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/c/code-of-practice-on-local-authority-accounting-in-the-united-kingdom-guidance-notes-for-201920-accounts-online


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – CIPFA

10. IFRS 16 Leases: An Early Guide for Local Authority Practitioners, CIPFA, December 2019

Although changes will not have an effect until the 2020/21 financial statements, CIPFA/LASAAC consulted in the summer of 2018 on
amendments to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting for IFRS 16 Leases. The Standard is expected to have a potentially 
significant practical and financial effect for local authorities, and it was considered that early notice of the technical requirements was 
advisable.

It will be of wide interest because of the prevalence of leasing in local government and the risk that the changes could have a budgetary 
impact if not managed effectively.

This guidance provides comprehensive coverage of the proposed requirements for lessees, including the accounting definition of a lease, 
recognition of assets and liabilities, measurement, derecognition and presentation, and disclosure in the financial statements. Although 
there have not been significant changes to the requirements for lessors, the guidance includes extensive commentary of this area.

The guidance covers in particular:

 identifying arrangements that meet the accounting definition of a lease

 determining the term of a lease where there are options to extend or terminate

 for lessees:

 recognising right-of–use assets and lease liabilities, and their initial and subsequent measurement

 reassessment of lease liabilities and treatment of lease modifications

 for lessors, distinguishing between finance and operating leases and accounting accordingly

 dealing with sale and leaseback transactions

 presenting lease transactions and balances in the financial statements

 disclosure of information about leases in the notes to the accounts

 harmonising with statutory accounting requirements

 the mechanics of making the transition in the 2020/21 financial statements (including the application of transitional provisions and the 
preparation of relevant disclosure notes).

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/i/ifrs-16-leases-an-early-guide-for-local-authority-practitioners

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

11
Page 102

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/i/ifrs-16-leases-an-early-guide-for-local-authority-practitioners


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – MHCLG

11. Final local government finance settlement: England, 2020 to 2021, February 2020

Following the provisional settlement, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government published the collection of documents 
that comprise the final settlement for Local Government.

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/final-local-government-finance-settlement-england-2020-to-2021

12. Northamptonshire County Council: fourth commissioners' report, January 2020

MHCLG have published the fourth commissioner’s report into Northamptonshire County Council. This report sets out the progress made 

to stabilise the council’s finances, and to strengthen the council’s scrutiny and governance processes. The commissioner’s work continues 

to support the setting up of the 2 new shadow authorities from May 2020.

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/northamptonshire-county-council-fourth-commissioners-report

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

12
Page 103

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/final-local-government-finance-settlement-england-2020-to-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/northamptonshire-county-council-fourth-commissioners-report


Partner: Karen Murray

Phone: 0161 238 9248

Mobile: 07721 234043

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Senior Manager: Daniel Watson

Phone: 0161 238 9349 
Mobile: 07909 985324
Email:  daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk

CONTACT

Page 104



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 9th March 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Quarter 3 Report 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the third 
quarter of 2019/20. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or 
adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period. Furthermore, Internal Audit has completed 
74% of the agreed Audit Plan which achieves the agreed target. 

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £63,372 in identifying savings and 
overpayments during the period (£172,758 for the 9 months ended 31 
December 2019) together with two sanctions comprising of one caution and 
one fine for fraud. 

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Internal Audit work of the management of risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in 
accordance with their work programme and overall responsibility for 
governance, to scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the third quarter of 
2019/20 on all Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal Audit 
is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Page 105

Agenda Item 9



Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1 

4.2

4.3

4.4

Risk Based Audit Approach

10. Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the 
internal control environment, risk management and governance 
processes for the Council as a whole, as set out within the Internal Audit 
Charter. A risk based approach is taken within individual audit reviews, 
embracing operational and management controls and the wider 
business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk 
identification and exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to 
manage those risks. 

In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance 
opinion on how effectively risks are being managed in the area under 
review. These opinions are as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited
A number of key risks are not managed effectively. 
The control systems in operation are in need of 
significant improvement.

Adequate
The control systems in operation are generally 
sound. However, opportunities exist to improve the 
management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to 
manage risks effectively.

In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with 
the assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a 
timely basis, any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited 
assurance will be highlighted within section 6 of this report. These will be 
subject to specific discussion and challenge by Members with senior 
officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, Internal Audit will perform a 
formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner if the due date for 
completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the Audit and 
Governance Committee with our findings.

In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and 
medium priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm 
completion once the due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation 
will be reported to the Committee for further consideration. If some of the 
recommendations have not yet been actioned, Internal Audit will request 
reasons for the delay and confirmation of a revised date by which the 
action should be completed. 

Page 106



4.5

4.6

5

5.1

6

6.1

6.2

7

7.1

7.2

The current status of the implementation of audit recommendations as 
confirmed by formal follow up audits is highlighted within Appendix B and 
any key issues will be highlighted to the Members. Whilst in some cases 
implementation has not been achieved by the originally agreed dates, 
Internal Audit has received reasonable explanations to support the delays 
incurred and will continue to monitor progress through to the revised dates 
proposed by management. 

Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal 
responses to recommendations raised are received within one month of 
the issue date. Internal Audit actively follows up with management via an 
escalation process to ensure that the reports and actions are agreed in a 
timely manner. At present, there are no draft reports where responses are 
still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

Planned Work Completed During Quarter Three

Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed 
during quarter three which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance 
opinion. Key areas for improvement are summarised for each audit with 
a specific focus on any agreed actions designated as high priority.

Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up 
Audits

No audit reviews with a limited assurance opinion have been completed 
during the period.

The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B. 

Unplanned work

Exemptions
  (Director  – Resources)

Further to the audit of external placements within Children’s Services, the 
outcomes from which are summarised in Appendix A, an additional review 
of processes relating to procurement exemptions, where approval is given 
to not comply with certain aspects of Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs), 
was undertaken. This was initiated by Internal Audit as a result of issues 
highlighted which fell outside of the original audit scope.

The review of exemptions highlighted the following issues:
 The Council does not have a process for monitoring exemptions 

which have been sent to STAR to ensure they are processed in a 
timely manner;

 The Contracts Register does not contain accurate and up to date 
information relating to exemptions;

 The CPRs, exemption and breach report processes do not appear to 
be appropriate to the circumstances associated with emergency 
placements and merit further consideration; and

Page 107



7.3

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

 CPRs and supporting guidance make no reference to retrospective 
exemptions or the breach report process so there is no guidance 
available to management who are dealing with relevant situations.

Following discussions with both senior management and STAR, the 
various actions which were agreed and since been progressed will 
enhance supporting processes on a corporate basis. New monitoring 
procedures and the updated CPRs and supporting handbook which are 
being developed will be communicated to staff as soon as possible once 
they have been finalised and approved. Internal Audit will continue to 
monitor developments to ensure timely completion of all agreed actions.

Counter Fraud Team

A summary of the work completed and results achieved by the Counter 
Fraud Team from October to December 2019 is set out below.

Performance

A total of 213 fraud referrals were received in the third quarter of this 
financial year, compared to 144 from the same period in 2018/19. The main 
sources of these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the 
Partnership Enforcement Team, anonymous information and RBC 
employees. A significant number of these do not progress to formal 
investigation by the team as they are either passed to the DWP or closed 
due to apparent malicious intent or the fact that there is not enough 
information to progress the matter. 

From October to December 2019 the team achieved £63,372 in additional 
savings and overpayments. This figure derives from successful 
investigations into transactions associated with a number of Service areas 
including Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge and Adult 
Care, as well as additional income from fraud financial penalties and 
administrative penalties. 

74% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in the third quarter. 

Two sanctions were achieved in quarter three, comprising of one caution 
and one fine for fraud. 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 
have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received 
from the NFI.  

The Team have being checking the data received in the 2018/2019 NFI 
Single Person Discount, Council Tax matches. To date over 490 matches 
have been checked and over £28,000 has been generated from cancelled 
single person discounts.                          .       
                                     

Page 108



8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

9

9.1

The NFI Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support work from 2018/2019 is 
ongoing. The high risk matches have been checked and we currently have 
12 open investigations. We are also waiting for information from other local 
authorities on 3 matches. To date, the Counter Fraud Team have found 
over £20,000 in overpayments from these NFI matches and these are 
being recovered.  

New HMRC data has been provided by NFI. A sample of the Council Tax, 
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support matches have been checked but 
the data was found to be dated and therefore not relevant to the live benefit 
and Council Tax accounts. Feedback has been sent to NFI. 

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 
provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to 
over 120 Data Protection Requests from October to December 2019, not 
including the work that is completed in the PET. 

Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, 
skills and powers from the different enforcement agencies are used to 
prevent and detect fraud within the Borough. Currently the following cross-
agency teams attend the weekly meeting: GMP – Organised Crime Team; 
Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s Services; Community 
Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public Protection; 
Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service 
officials.

The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 120 ‘police checks’ on 
Rochdale BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and 
absconders.   10 cases are currently under investigation including tenancy 
fraud cases under the Controlling Migration Funding. Four Council Tax 
Single Person Discounts were cancelled, as a result of PET work, creating 
savings of over £2,500.       
  
The Counter Fraud Team continues to participate in days of action and 
proactive visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council 
Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.  
  
Internal Audit Performance Measures

The table below shows actual performance as at 31 December 2019 
against Internal Audit targets for the third quarter, including the actuals for 
2018/19. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Year 

Target 
Q3

Actual 
Q3

Page 109



9.2

10

10.1

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20
Economy

1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding 
overheads

£229 £260 £244

Efficiency

2. Chargeable days per auditor 
(days)

208 190 196

3. Percentage of audit plan 
completed (96% for full year)

96% 74% 74%

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Year 
2018/19

Target 
Q3
2019/20

Actual 
Q3
2019/20

4. Percentage of draft audit reports 
issued within 14 days of 
completion of the audit

100% 98% 100%

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of 
marks in the top two categories 
(i.e. very good & good)

100% 98% 100%

  
All performance indicators were either achieved or were ahead of target for 
the period.  

Amendments to the Audit Plan

Following a full review of the Audit Plan, as agreed by the Audit and 
Governance Committee on 8 April 2019, in conjunction with senior 
management within individual directorates, the following audits have now 
been deferred to 2020/21 or deleted for the reasons stated. As such the 
Head of Internal Audit considers that this will have no detrimental impact on 
the ability to deliver an opinion on the overall control environment for 
2019/20.

 ALLIS – Organisational Safeguarding Module (Adult Care) – due to 
ongoing development of this module, it was agreed with 
management to defer this audit to 2020/21 to allow the new system 
to be fully embedded prior to evaluation;

 Special Guardianship Orders (Adult Care) – in response to a recent 
report from the Ombudsman in late 2019, a new Policy supporting 
this area is being consulted on and so the proposed audit has been 
deferred to 2020/21; 

 Fleet Management System (Neighbourhoods) – this audit has been 
deferred to 2020/21 due to delays in the full implementation of the 
new Key2 system; and

Page 110



 CCTV (Neighbourhoods) – agreement was reached with 
management to defer this audit to 2020/21 as the self-assessment 
process had not yet been completed across the Borough.

10.2     The audit resource freed up as a result of the above has subsequently been 
absorbed within additional audit work focused on procurement, largely focused 
within Children’s Services and Adult Care.

11  Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit

11.1 Internal Audit continues to undertake audit work for a number of organisations 
in accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In 2019/20 to 31 December 2019 this has generated 
income of £5,190 and has included: 

 Audit of School Fund Accounts for 13 schools under Local Authority 
control; 

 Financial health check for one school under Local Authority control; and
 Two grant certifications for an Academy.

11.2      Within the limitations of existing resources, Internal Audit continues to pursue 
opportunities to generate external income.

Costs and Budget Summary

12. The Counter Fraud Team has achieved £172,758 in identifying savings and 
overpayments during the 9 months ended 31 December 2019 which has a 
positive impact on the Council budget as a whole. Furthermore the income 
generated by Internal Audit of £5,190 (paragraph 11.1) has a positive impact 
on the Internal Audit budget.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during 
reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and 
governance.

13.

Page 111



Consultation

14. The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 112



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter three

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Residential Care 
Top Up Payments

When a person requires residential accommodation the Care Act states 
that the ‘Local Authority must ensure the person has a genuine choice of 
accommodation’. Where the Council is funding a care home an amount of 
money is allocated to meet the needs of the service user. Where the 
service user would prefer a more expensive home, they can still move 
there if someone pays the difference, a “top-up fee”, between the fees and 
the money allocated. The objective of this audit was to provide an opinion 
on compliance with procedures and to ensure that systems are in place to 
ensure that all top up payments made by the Council are invoiced to 
recover the payment made to the provider.

The audit provided substantial assurance that robust processes and 
controls are in place with all transactions accurately recorded on the 
systems.

Substantial L – 1 

P
age 113



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s External 
Placements

Where it is not possible or practical for the Council to provide a foster or 
residential care home from its own resources, external agencies are 
contracted on its behalf. Placements with these external agencies can be 
within Rochdale itself or out of the borough, depending on the need of the 
child and the availability of suitable assistance and/ or accommodation. 
With increasing demand for such placements, this has led to significant 
budget pressures within the Service. This audit sought to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the end to end placement process.

The audit concluded that the control systems in operation are generally 
sound but there are some opportunities to improve the management of 
some risks. The key actions agreed included the following:

 To enhance overall information governance in relation to methods 
of communication and documents used to support the placement 
process to ensure all key legislation is complied with;

 The need to ensure exemptions from Contract Procedure Rules are 
processed correctly, including the completion of breach reports 
where appropriate. This matter is addressed further in paragraph 
7.1 of this report where Internal Audit has made recommendations 
to both Finance and STAR to improve this process further on a 
corporate basis;

 To enhance delegated authority arrangements to support payments 
made whilst also ensuring the process to be followed is much 
clearer than at present; and

 Further guidance should be developed to ensure the principles 
within the Confidentiality Policy are fully complied with at all times.

Adequate H – 4,
M – 3 

P
age 114



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Troubled Families As part of the Greater Manchester Devolution process, agreement was 
reached with the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
for the remainder of GM’s allocation of funding for the delivery of the 
troubled families programme to be included in the GM Reform Investment 
Fund. This means that GM now operates outside of the National Financial 
Framework and monies received by the GM Combined Authority are 
drawn down by authorities based on their approved Investment Plan. 
Principles and targets are set out in the GM Troubled Family Framework 
and GM Troubled Family Outcomes Plan (GMTFOP). This new model 
focusses primarily on the verification of the quality assurance processes 
and decision making around case management which provided the 
foundation for this audit.

The audit confirmed that effective procedures, controls and systems are in 
place to capture information in respect of Troubled Families that allows the 
Council to demonstrate compliance with the GMTFOP and Framework and 
no recommendations were made.

Substantial None

P
age 115



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Music Service Rochdale Music Service provides a range of musical activities designed to 
meet the music educational needs of children and young people. The 
Music Service is part of the suite of services offered to maintained schools 
under the Council’s traded services arrangements. The majority of their 
work is undertaken in schools with Music Service tutors visiting schools to 
teach both instrumental lessons and vocal tuition. The audit focused on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of key controls and procedures within the 
Service.

Whilst controls overall are generally sound, recommendations were agreed 
to further strengthen controls already in place including:

 Updating income records more promptly to facilitate more effective 
debt collection;

 Ensuring tutor timesheets are submitted on a more regular basis 
for prompt processing;

 Ensuring registers for groups are taken for all groups and 
submitted regularly; and

 Enhancing controls over cash held on site to align with insurance 
conditions.

Adequate M – 7,
L – 7 

P
age 116



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Collaborative 
Schools

Increasingly there has been a move towards collaborative arrangements 
between schools in order to achieve school improvement. Under these 
joint working arrangements staffs from schools are brought together on a 
network basis, enabling, amongst other things, good practice to be shared 
and extended into other schools. The Pioneer Trust is one such 
arrangement set up for secondary schools which receives funding from 
both the Council and its member schools. The audit focused on evaluating 
the governance arrangements, deployment of funding and measurement 
of outcomes to demonstrate value for money.

Whilst the audit confirmed that processes and controls are generally sound 
and the schools were positive about the benefits of such collaborative 
work, there are opportunities to improve the management of some areas 
including:

 Enhancing the scrutiny and transparency of decision making and 
financial spend to improve overall governance; and

 Further develop processes for evidencing the direct impact of such 
collaborative work to demonstrate the benefit of such collaboration.

Adequate M – 2,
L – 1 

P
age 117



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods IT Security The increasing desire and need to put services on a digital footing brings 
some significant risk that needs to be managed appropriately in order to 
maintain the confidentiality, integrity and availability of systems and data. 
There is therefore a need for robust cyber security to mitigate risks such as 
deliberate or accidental loss of data, especially that of a confidential or 
sensitive nature. This is a risk that should be understood and owned by all 
levels of management and staff within each Service area. Against this 
background, the audit focused on providing assurance as to the 
effectiveness of this control environment.

The audit provided assurance that control systems in operation are 
generally sound but that there are opportunities to strengthen 
arrangements in relation to governance, ownership and policy. The key 
actions agreed included ensuring that:

 Ownership by and engagement with the Leadership Team on 
issues of cyber security is enhanced;

 The need for and availability of dedicated resource to address this 
risk is re-considered;

 The Cyber Security policy is reviewed and updated to ensure it 
remains appropriate;

 A Cyber Security Board is established to lead, facilitate and advise 
on appropriate decision making processes; and

 Consideration is given towards attaining appropriate accreditation 
against best practice standards, or at least undertaking a gap 
analysis to ensure these standards underpin Council practice.  

Adequate H – 2,
M – 4,
L – 3 

P
age 118



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Data Security and 
Protection (DSP) 

Toolkit

The DSP Toolkit is an online self-assessment tool that allows 
organisations to measure their performance against the National Data 
Guardian’s data security standards. This is vital in view of the access that 
is given to highly sensitive patient data in the NHS. The audit focused on 
the areas of pseudonymisation, anonymisation and de-identification 
controls on which the Council could not confirm full compliance when the 
last return was submitted in March 2019.

The audit concluded that there are now good arrangements in place to 
support confidentiality of personal data and general awareness of data 
protection requirements is very good. However it was agreed that a 
specific policy should be developed by the Council to cover these specific 
areas to add further clarity to staff’s understanding, which will further 
mitigate against the risk of non-compliance. 

Adequate M – 2 

P
age 119



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Honorarium and 
Substitution 
Payments

Honorarium and substitution payments are used to address temporary 
changes in the workforce by providing payment to existing staff who 
perform additional duties or take on the full responsibilities of a higher 
grade post. Both payments are made to staff when the additional roles 
have been undertaken. The audit focused on confirming that policies have 
been correctly followed, including the duration and authorisation of the 
payments.

The audit concluded that the majority of payments have been correctly 
applied in compliance with policy. However a number of issues were 
identified as a result of which some actions were agreed with management 
to:

 Review any payments which have been in place for extended 
periods of time to ensure such payments are not being used to fill 
long term gaps in employment;

 Revise and update the forms used to request such payments to 
ensure they align with policy and are consistent with each other; 
and

 Review and update relevant policies to clear up certain ambiguities.

Adequate H – 2,
M – 5,
L – 2 

Various Grant 
Certifications

Certain grants available to RBC require periodic certification to confirm that 
the grants have been spent in accordance with grant terms and conditions. 
These certifications generally require sign off by the Head of Internal Audit 
together with either the Chief Executive or Chief Finance Officer. During 
quarter three, the following grant certification was signed off in this way: 

 Local Growth Fund Determination 2018/19.

Internal Audit performed various independent checks to ensure that grant 
certifications could be signed off and no issues arose from this work.

Substantial None

P
age 120



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

6 Primary 
Schools

2 High Schools

This comprised a review of the schools’ exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
Caldershaw Primary
Falinge Park High
Greenbank Primary
Heap Bridge Primary
Hollin Community Primary
Holy Trinity CE Primary
Hopwood Community Primary
Kingsway Park High

Whilst no high priority recommendations were made, a number of actions 
were agreed to improve processes and controls including ensuring that:

 All expenditure follows agreed purchase ordering procedures;
 Appropriate schemes of delegation are established to enhance 

overall governance;
 Evidence is retained to demonstrate that IR35 checks have been 

completed;
 The approval of key financial policies and decisions are clearly 

documented within meeting minutes;
 The school finance policy and finance procedure manuals are 

continually reviewed and updated to ensure they remain relevant; 
and

 All members of the Governing Body complete a business interest 
from on an annual basis.

Substantial – 
6

Adequate – 2

M – 12,
L – 41 

P
age 121



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 26 FEBRUARY 2020

Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Highways Winter Service S Neighbourhoods 11 31/08/2019 13/02/2020 9 2

The update of the Winter 
Service Policy and Plans will 
be aligned with the outcomes 

of an AGMA wide policy 
review with completion now 

expected by September 
2020. 

Commercial Investment 
Fund A Economy 7 31/10/2019 29/04/2019 5 2

The development of a 
Portfolio Management 

Strategy is currently subject 
to ongoing management 

consideration in conjunction 
with RDA prior to going to 

Cabinet for approval. 
Music Service A Children’s 7 31/12/2019  4 3 To be followed up in 2019/20
Data Security and 
Protection Toolkit A Neighbourhoods 2 31/01/2020    Follow up in progress

External Placements A Children’s 7 31/01/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20
Collaborative Schools A Children’s 2 28/02/2020    To be followed up in 2019/20

Town Centre Programme 
Management A Economy 8 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

Corporate GDPR/ Data 
Protection Arrangements A Neighbourhoods 7 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

Honorarium And 
Substitution Payments A Resources 7 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

Pooled Budgets A Integrated Health 4 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21 
by the MIAA

Exemptions N/A Resources 5 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

P
age 122



Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Cyber Security - LGA 
Stocktake Report A Neighbourhoods 3 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

Youth Offending Team S Children’s 1 30/04/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

Pen Pictures A Adult Care 6 30/04/2020 13/11/2019 3 3

3 remaining 
recommendations will be 

completed once a full review 
of the Commissioning Pen 
Picture process has been 

completed.

ContrOCC A Adult 2 30/06/2020 11/12/2019 1 1

Full resolution of data 
cleansing will only be 

achieved through a system 
upgrade which the supplier is 
working on for early in 2020.

I.T. Security A Neighbourhoods 6 30/06/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

Local Care Organisation S Integrated Health 4 30/06/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21 
by the MIAA

Traffic Regulation Orders S Neighbourhoods 2 31/03/2021    

A longer timescale is 
required in view of the 

challenge posed by 
consolidating all existing 

TROs

P
age 123



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 9th March 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Plan 2020/21

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

This report sets out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 which 
has been developed in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter and 
with close liaison with both the Leadership Team and Senior Management 
to identify and evaluate the key areas of risk. This will provide appropriate 
coverage of Council services in order to ensure that an independent 
opinion can be given on the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes at the end of the year. The Audit Plan also 
provides for flexibility to allow for new and emerging areas of risk to be 
evaluated during the course of the year. 

This report therefore seeks to inform Audit and Governance Committee, in 
the context of the Members being charged with the overall responsibility 
for governance, of the proposed work programme of Internal Audit to 
facilitate approval of the Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21.

Recommendation

2. The Audit and Governance Committee approve the Internal Audit Plan for 
2020/21.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report sets out the work programme for Internal Audit for 2020/21. 
Internal Audit is defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
as an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed 
to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, 
control and governance processes. The focus of Internal Audit work 
includes the financial systems, operational and management controls and 
also includes risk management and corporate governance as a 
contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources.

Page 124

Agenda Item 10



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

The objectives of RBC Internal Audit which inform the development of 
the annual audit plan are to:
 Deliver an annual Internal Audit opinion and report that can be used 

by the Authority to inform its Annual Governance Statement;
 Independently review and appraise systems of control throughout the 

Council;
 Ascertain the extent of compliance with procedures, policies, 

regulations and legislation;
 Provide reassurance to management that their agreed policies are 

being carried out effectively;
 Facilitate good practice in managing risks;
 Provide proactive advice and input into any significant system or 

procedural developments;
 Recommend improvements in control, performance and productivity 

in achieving corporate objectives;
 Review and challenge the value for money processes and systems 

within the Council;
 Work in partnership with the external auditors;
 Identify fraud as a consequence of its reviews and deter crime; and
 Lead and promote the counter fraud culture within the Authority.

Audit Planning
The Authority’s Internal Audit Strategic Plan details all potential audit 
areas at a corporate level and across all service areas within RBC. 
Attached to each audit area is a risk score based on a number of risk 
factors which influences the frequency of audit review and the estimated 
resource requirements to cover each audit area. Specific audit scopes 
are discussed and agreed with management prior to the 
commencement of each audit to optimize the value added from each 
audit. The Audit Strategic Plan is reviewed and challenged annually in 
consultation with Directors and senior management to ensure it remains 
up to date, especially in these times of significant ongoing change.

4.3 The annual audit plan is determined from a number of sources:
 The Audit Strategic Plan identifying audit areas of highest risk, the 

date the audit review was last undertaken and frequency thereof;
 The corporate and service based risk registers, aligned with the 

corporate objectives, to identify areas of high strategic and 
operational risk;

 Discussions with members of the Leadership Team;
 Actions and developments identified in the Annual Governance 

Statement;
 Directors and Service Management Teams to advise on service 

developments and providing opinions on proposed audit coverage 
and audit scheduling;

Page 125



 Issues highlighted by the Audit and Governance Committee;
 Changes and developments arising from corporate savings 

initiatives;
 The external auditor, advising on national developments and to avoid 

duplication with their own audit plan for the Authority;
 Issues identified from external assessments undertaken on Council 

services;
 External assurances required by agreed contractual or funding 

arrangements or legislative requirements; and
 Audit resource availability.

4.4 Provision exists within the audit plan for unplanned work such as special 
investigations involving suspected fraud and irregularity and the 
provision of ad hoc advice. For 2020/21 the provision for unplanned 
work amounts to 15.1% of the available time.

4.5 A risk based approach to individual audit reviews is now well developed. 
This embraces operational and management controls and the wider 
business risk, as set out within the Internal Audit Charter. It allows an 
opinion to be expressed on risk identification and exposure and the 
adequacy of systems in place to manage and control those risks. 

4.6
Internal Audit Plan 2020/21
The annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 has been agreed with the 
Chief Finance Officer as s151 Officer. Agreement to individual Service 
Audit Plans has also been received from all relevant Directors through 
attendance at Senior Management Team Meetings, which form a core 
part of the ongoing client liaison process. A detailed breakdown of the 
Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 is included in Appendix A.

4.7 Audit coverage is prioritised and categorised between “core” work and 
“assurance” work. Core work relates to those areas, normally of higher 
risk, where Internal Audit review or support will add greatest value to the 
organisation. The projects within this category will be given the highest 
priority in the event of competing demands for Internal Audit 
involvement. Assurance work complements the work from the core plan 
and ensures an adequate level of Internal Audit review each year within 
each Service. Both core and assurance work form key elements of the 
Audit Plan to allow a formal audit opinion to be formed at the end of 
each year.

4.8 The assessment of risk for each audit within the Plan takes account of 
many factors including materiality, the risk of reputational damage, 
potential fraud risk, third party sensitivity, the extent to which the service 
area is governed by legislation or external regulation, results of previous 
audits or external inspections, the extent of recent change within 
processes and systems and the degree of manual intervention within 
processes. Priority within the plan will always be given to those audit 
areas assessed as either high or medium risk in this context.

4.9 The risk profile of the Authority is still dominated by the impact of the   

Page 126



Savings Programme and the fundamental restructuring of Council 
services that is continuing to take place as a result of the significant 
reductions to funding streams that have been directed by central 
government over recent years. Another major impact comes from the 
integration of health and social care services, supported by the 
establishment of a pooled budget arrangement and the development of 
a more formal Local Care Organisation (LCO). The LCO currently does 
not exist as a distinct legal entity in its own right, but operates under a 
partnership agreement and is therefore unable to take decisions 
separately from the individual partner organisations. Accordingly these 
factors continue to influence many areas of Internal Audit work over 
the coming year. As part of this, specific focus will be directed towards 
the various transformation programmes that are progressing as well as 
the governance and commissioning challenges that arise from 
developing and adopting new ways of working and different models of 
delivering services. 

4.10 In view of the significant changes taking place within Services across 
the Council, this factor provided a starting point for the 2020/21 planning 
process more than the Audit Strategic Plan. The latter continues to be 
challenged and reviewed by Internal Audit, in conjunction with Service 
management, to ensure that it remains in line within the shape and 
structure of Council Services, functions and systems and continues to 
support the overall Internal Audit approach going forward.  

4.11 Alongside the above, the core themes of the Audit Plan align with the 
significant risks currently faced by the Authority which include:
 The effectiveness of information governance within which ongoing 

challenges exist for the Council and the network of schools to remain 
compliant with various legislation and regulations, with specific 
reference to the General Data Protection Regulation which became 
effective on 25 May 2018; 

 Compliance with the Public Services Network which is crucial to 
ensure ongoing connectivity with key government systems;

 Other key ICT system developments which support transformational 
change within services, including the Customer Transformation 
Programme; and other risks associated with cyber security, disaster 
recovery and IT asset management;

 The impact of ongoing legislative changes and the personalisation 
agenda within Adult Care which is transforming the ways in which 
care is provided and funded, requiring a commensurate change in 
the systems and processes which support the services;

 The Council’s response and developments in processes and controls 
within Children’s Services in the light of issues previously highlighted 
by external bodies in relation to child sexual exploitation and 
safeguarding;

 The governance of and contractual relationships with significant 
external partners, such as Link4Life, on which increasing reliance 
may be placed to deliver significant services either for or alongside 
Council services; 

 The commissioning and performance management of external 

Page 127



service providers including the commissioning of care providers and 
off-contract placements within adult care, an area which is 
generating significant financial pressures for the Council at present;

 Significant contracts and capital projects, and compliance with 
procurement legislation and regulations, supported by the STAR 
shared procurement service; 

 Initiatives associated with the climate emergency agenda promoted 
by central government which may involve significant investment in 
various projects to ensure both local and national targets are 
achieved within set timescales;

 Fundamental financial systems which support all significant 
transaction streams across the Authority, including council tax, 
business rates, treasury management, payroll, debtors and creditors;

 Projects supporting proposals linked with the commercialisation 
agenda to generate new income streams in the future which will 
mitigate against reductions in funding from central government;

 The robustness of decision making and approval processes, together 
with the adequacy of segregation of duties, specifically at a time 
when resources within the Council are reducing;

 The further development of a cohesive approach to managing the 
risk of fraud, which is enhanced at a time when the public sector is 
facing such significant economic challenges; and

 Ongoing changes within overall governance structures in order to 
promote improvements in the overall control environment.

4.12 Internal Audit will continue to take a lead role, working in conjunction with 
the Monitoring Officer, in promoting and supporting the zero-tolerance 
approach to fraud adopted within the Authority. This will include:
 Supporting the promotion of and awareness of the Anti-Fraud and 

Corruption Policy (AFACP), including the Whistleblowing Policy;
 Further development of a pro-active approach to fraud detection 

which both aligns with and adds to the National Fraud Initiative;
 Supporting the above approach by further developing the use of data 

mining software to highlight further potential areas of risk;
 Monitoring and reporting on the Authority’s response to various 

professional and sector led guidance and publications on best 
practice in fraud prevention and detection such as Fighting Fraud 
Locally;  

 Directly supporting the Counter Fraud Team to investigate and 
prosecute any identified fraudulent activity and to ensure an effective 
exchange of relevant information with various enforcement agencies; 
and

 Ensuring compliance is being achieved with all key policies and there 
is adequate awareness across the Authority. 

4.13 In addition to the above, Internal Audit will continue with the responsibility 
for co-ordinating the National Fraud Initiative. This will assist in providing 
input into future Internal Audit planning processes in relation to any 
specific issues that are highlighted through this exercise.

Page 128



4.14 Summary of Internal Audit Coverage by Service 2020/21
Planned and unplanned Internal Audit coverage by Service is 
summarised below:

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

In
te

gr
at

ed
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 - 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 - 

Ea
rly

 H
el

p 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

s

Ec
on

om
y

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng

R
es

ou
rc

es

Tr
ad

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Planned
Unplanned

Planned and Unplanned Coverage by Service

Days

4.15 The focus of individual services continues to evolve and realign as 
structural changes across the Council become embedded. With ever 
reducing finances and resources, the challenges faced within these 
services continue to be very demanding to ensure that they meet the 
needs of customers as well as relevant statutory obligations. As such the 
level of assurance required to confirm that controls and processes are 
effective has increased to ensure that risks are appropriately managed 
and overall objectives are achieved.

4.16 The summary also reflects the contingency of unplanned time which 
allows Internal Audit to respond to new and emerging risks which may 
not be currently anticipated. As such, and in view of ongoing changes 
within Council services and activities, the Internal Audit Plan will be 
constantly reviewed during the course of the year to ensure focus is 
being directed towards the areas of highest risk.

4.17
Other Sources of Assurance
The development of the plan has taken account of other sources of 
assurances, both internal and external to Council activities which sit 
alongside the assurances provided by Internal Audit. This includes not 
only the process of challenge and decision making through the Cabinet 
and Committee structure, forming a core part of the Constitution, but 
also various forms of self-assessment such as the annual Director’s 
Governance Assurance Statement and the Quality Assurance 
Frameworks within Children’s Social Care and Adult Care. 

Page 129



4.18 In addition, there are a number of areas of ongoing self-review with 
reporting through to senior managers’ groups and to Members as 
appropriate, including the following:
 Budget monitoring (revenue and capital);
 Compliance with risk management strategy;
 Review and management of major projects;
 Performance management and service delivery;
 Absence management;
 Health and safety; and
 Equality and diversity.

4.19 RBC Internal Audit work closely with the Internal Audit services based 
within Stockport BC, Trafford BC and Tameside BC to audit 
procurement areas within the scope covered by the STAR Procurement 
hub. Any such shared audits therefore provide assurance for all 4 
authorities and any audit reports issued are shared with each Authority 
and reported through to their respective Audit Committees. The themes 
to be covered within the respective Audit Plans in 2020/21 include the 
following:
 Spend monitoring;
 Contract management; 
 Compliance with Contract Procedure Rules; and
 Social value delivery.

4.20 Further assurance is gained from other independent reviews undertaken 
by both external audit (Mazars) and other external bodies such as 
Ofsted, Care Quality Commission, HM Customs, Food Standards 
Agency, Information Commissioners Office etc. together with 
independent peer reviews undertaken within Children’s Services and 
Adult Care to evaluate processes and practices against best practice 
standards. Internal Audit is also continuing to liaise with the Mersey 
Internal Audit Agency who provide internal audit services to the Clinical 
Commissioning Group in order to ensure that appropriate levels of 
assurance are gained as the integration of health and social care 
services develops.

4.21

Internal Audit Performance Indicators
The following performance indicators have been set in order to provide a 
measure of the performance of the Internal Audit team during each 
year.

Page 130



Performance Indicator Target
2019/20

Estimate
2019/20

Target
2020/21

Economy

1. Cost per Audit Day (£) – excluding 
overheads

260 255 267

Efficiency

2. Productive days per auditor 190 192 192

3. Percentage of audit plan completed 96 96 96

4. Percentage of draft reports issued 
within 14 days of completion of the 
audit

98 100 98

Effectiveness

5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

98 100 98

6. Results of client surveys - % of 
marks in the top two categories (i.e. 
very good and good)

98 100 98

4.22 The basis for the targets that have been established is as follows:
1. Cost per Audit Day (£)
This indicator provides a measure of the cost of the Internal Audit function 
by evaluating the total controllable cost of the function (i.e. excluding 
overhead cost allocations) in relation to productive days spent directly on 
audit work. Cost per audit day will be ahead of target in 2019/20 (i.e. lower) 
due to ongoing efforts to minimize administrative and other non-productive 
time and direct as much resource towards meeting the demands being 
placed upon the Internal Audit team. It has also been positively impacted by 
income generated from traded services which has reduced overall net cost. 
The target for 2020/21 reflects the impact of slight increases in salary 
related costs.    
2. Productive days per auditor
This indicator measures the efficiency of the Internal Audit function by 
calculating the average number of days spent by each member of the team 
on audit work, thus excluding non-chargeable time. Productive days per 
auditor will be slightly ahead of target in 2019/20 with significant efforts 
being directed towards minimizing administrative time. The target for 
2020/21 has been aligned with the likely outturn for 2019/20.       
3. Percentage of audit plan completed 
This measure provides assurance that an appropriate proportion of the 
Audit Plan has been completed to enable an opinion to be delivered on the 
overall control environment. The percentage of audit plan completed in 

Page 131



2019/20 is likely to achieve the target for the year.  

4. Percentage of draft reports issued within 14 days of completion of the 
audit

This indicator measures the efficiency of audit processes to ensure that 
draft reports are produced in a timely manner after the conclusion of the 
audit fieldwork. The target for 2019/20 will be exceeded and the target for 
2020/21 has been made at the same challenging level as 2019/20. 
5. Percentage of audit recommendations accepted
This indicator provides a measure of the acceptance of client management 
of the findings and recommendations arising from audit work completed. 
This target continues to be achieved.
6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in the top two categories (i.e. very 

good and good) 
This indicator provides a measure of how client management evaluates the 
service provided by audit staff through the client survey document that 
management is requested to complete at the conclusion of each audit. The 
target continues to be achieved as Internal Audit continues to improve 
effectiveness in this area through a focus on enhancing overall service 
levels and customer liaison.

4.23 The structure of the Internal Audit team is set out in Appendix B and 
remains unchanged from 2019/20. The Head of Internal Audit considers the 
resource available remains sufficient to be able to fulfil the core objectives 
of the Internal Audit service, specifically to deliver an audit opinion on the 
overall control environment. 

    Alternatives Considered
4.24 No alternatives have been considered given the statutory responsibilities 

that are being fulfilled through this process.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no cost or budget implications arising from this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The Internal Audit function discharges the statutory responsibilities 
delegated to the Chief Finance Officer through Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 
2015 to undertake an effective internal audit in accordance with public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance. The Internal Audit Plan 
forms the basis on which an independent opinion on the effectiveness of 
risk management, control and governance processes can be provided at 
each year end for inclusion within the Annual Governance Statement. The 
main risk of not accepting the plan is that this opinion cannot be delivered 
to confirm and support the adequacy of the overall governance 
framework.

Page 132



Consultation

7. An extensive process of consultation is undertaken in order to develop 
this Internal Audit Plan, as set out within paragraph 4.3, in order to 
ensure that all key areas of risk are considered. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 133



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL – INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21                                                                          APPENDIX A                                                                                      

Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 INTEGRATED HEALTH AND CARE 
COMMISSIONING         

1

Governance Structures and Processes
Provide support and challenge to the development 
of the governance arrangements as integration of 
Health and Social Care services evolves alongside 
the establishment of a Local Care Organisation, a 
Strategic Commissioning function, the operation of 
a Pooled Budget arrangement and the delivery of a 
savings plan for Health and Social Care. Evaluate 
the effectiveness of established governance 
arrangements including decision making and 
reporting structures where appropriate. 

Poor governance leading 
to failure to deliver key 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources

Risk H  10  10 Core

 ADULT CARE         

2
ALLIS
Provide assurance over the effectiveness of 
processes and controls within the organisational 
safeguarding module. 

Financial and operational 
information is not handled 
effectively leading to 
inappropriate outcomes or 
payments.

Risk M 15    Assurance

3
Liberty Protection Safeguards
Evaluate the processes and controls supporting the 
new safeguarding framework which is due to be 
implemented by October 2020. 

Inadequate processes 
may compromise the 
safeguarding of adults in 
care

Risk H    20 Assurance

P
age 134



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

4

Provider Portal Payments
Evaluate the processes and controls within the 
payment system for providers, ensuring the integrity 
of data input by the providers which supports future 
payments to them.

Inaccurate data may lead 
to financial loss Risk M  20   Core

5

Pre-payment Cards
Evaluate processes and controls relating to 
prepayment cards within Adult Care Services 
established to support clients personal budgets. 
Ensure robust controls in place to recover any 
unspent funds.

Ineffective management of 
care accounts and 
inaccurate data which may 
lead to financial loss or 
reputational damage.

Risk M   15  Assurance

6

Off-Contract Placements for Older People
Evaluate processes and controls supporting non-
standard or off-contract placements for older people 
to ensure they are effective towards delivering value 
for money and align with agreed procedures and 
protocols.

Ineffective governance 
may lead to significant 
cost pressures

Risk/ 
Compliance H 20    Assurance

7

Commissioning of Care Providers
Evaluate the effectiveness of processes and 
controls relating to the commissioning of care 
providers focusing on both the initial and ongoing 
assessment of their viability and longer term 
sustainability together with any contingency plans.

Failure of care providers 
may lead to significant 
additional cost to the 
Authority

Risk H    20 Assurance

8
Disabled Facilities Capital Grant Determination 
To confirm that the grant has been spent in 
accordance with grant terms and conditions

Inappropriate claims which 
may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance L   5  Assurance

P
age 135



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 CHILDREN'S SERVICES - CHILDRENS SOCIAL 
CARE         

9
Special Guardianship Orders
Evaluate the effectiveness of processes supporting 
Special Guardianship Orders 

Inappropriate allowances 
are paid leading to 
financial loss

Risk M   20 Assurance

 10

Quality Assurance Framework
Evaluate the effectiveness of new processes for 
evaluating performance and compliance with 
agreed standards to determine if these are leading 
to improvements in performance.

Inconsistent application of 
standards may lead to 
enhanced vulnerability of 
children in care

Risk M    20 Assurance

 11

Fostering
Evaluate the end to end recruitment process for 
foster carers to ensure it is efficient and effective 
towards recruiting more carers within the 
established guidelines.

Inadequate or 
inappropriate recruitment 
may lead to additional cost 
pressures

Risk H  20   Assurance

 CHILDREN’S SERVICES - EARLY HELP AND 
SCHOOLS         

 12

Troubled Families
Evaluate processes and controls to ensure they are 
effective and support compliance with the GM 
Troubled Family Framework and Troubled Family 
Outcome Plan

Lack of compliance may 
lead to funding being 
restricted 

Risk/ 
Compliance M   15  Assurance

 13
Apprenticeship Levy
Ensure compliance with the levy including the 
payment of appropriate pay levels

Potential for financial loss Risk/ 
Compliance L  15   Assurance

P
age 136



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 14

Leadership Pay in Schools
Provide assurance that Leadership Team's pay is in 
accordance with the Teacher's Pay and conditions 
document and is appropriately justified and 
approved in accordance with agreed policies and 
procedures.

Inappropriate use of 
resources and risk of 
challenge

Risk/ 
Compliance M 20    Assurance

 15
Top-Up Funding for SEN
Evaluate processes and controls supporting top-up 
funding for SEN within mainstream schools to 
ensure it supports overall objectives and is 
appropriately monitored and reported.

Failure to achieve 
objectives due to 
inappropriate use of funds 
and resources

Risk M 10 10 10 10 Assurance

16

EYES System - compliance review against Data 
Protection Impact Assessment
Evaluate compliance with DPIA issued in July 2019 
and ensure governance arrangements remain 
appropriate

Compliance with key 
areas of legislation and 
regulation are 
compromised which may 
result in financial penalties 
or loss of connectivity with 
key government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance M 10 Assurance

 17
Primary schools (13)
Review of key controls within school financial 
systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L 19 19 20 20 Assurance

P
age 137



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 18
Special Schools (1)
Review of key controls within school financial 
systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L  8   Assurance

 19 General advice and liaison with Schools Service
Ad hoc control issues or 
developments are not 
supported in a timely 
manner.

All L 3 3 3 3 Assurance

 PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING         

 20

Sexual Health Services
Evaluate the processes and controls supporting 
cross charges for sexual health services where a 
person who lives in one Authority presents 
themselves in another Authority for the use of their 
services.

Lack of appropriate 
processes and controls 
may result in incorrect 
charges and potential 
budget pressures

Risk/ 
Compliance M 15   Assurance

 NEIGHBOURHOODS         

 21

Climate Emergency
Provide input and challenge to initiatives arising 
from the focus on the Climate Emergency agenda 
and provide independent assurance on the 
adequacy of processes and controls where 
appropriate.

Inadequate arrangements 
may lead to non-
compliance with legislation 
or regulations or failure to 
achieve agreed targets, 
and subsequently 
additional financial cost.

Risk/ 
Compliance M 10  10 Assurance

P
age 138



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 22

Equality and Diversity
Provide assurance whether the Council is meeting 
its Equality & Diversity obligations under the Public 
Sector Equality Duty, as referred to in the Council’s 
own EDI Strategy 2020-2024, and within the wider 
context of the Equality Act 2010.

Non-compliance or 
inadequate arrangements 
could lead to the possible 
unfair treatment of people 
leading to reputational 
damage. 

Risk/ 
Compliance L  15   Assurance

 23
Additional Investment in Highways
Evaluate the governance and controls over the use 
of additional financial investment provided to 
improve highways across the Borough

Failure to meet corporate 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources.

Risk M   15  Assurance

 24

Drug and Alcohol Policy (Public Protection)
Evaluate compliance with the Drug and Alcohol 
Policy ensuring appropriate awareness and 
acceptance of the Policy, especially in higher risk 
operational areas. Benchmark the Policy and 
ensure robust implementation and monitoring is in 
place.

Abuse may lead to public 
liability claims through risk 
of harm to others and/ or 
reputational damage 
giving rise to financial loss.

Risk/ 
Compliance M   15  Assurance

 25
Fleet Management System
Evaluate controls and processes with the Key2 
system focusing mainly on the ordering and 
approval processes.

Ineffective financial 
management due to poor 
quality data

Risk M    15 Assurance

 26
CCTV
Evaluate the self-assessment process which 
assesses compliance with the CCTV Code of 
Practice

Non-compliance with 
regulations may 
compromise the 
effectiveness of security 
arrangements

Compliance L   12  Assurance

P
age 139



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 27
Modern Slavery Charter
Evaluate the level of compliance with the Charter, 
ensuring appropriate processes, controls and 
reporting mechanisms are in place.

Potential reputational 
damage Compliance L   15  Assurance

 28
Capital Projects
Evaluate the governance, processes and controls 
supporting key capital projects and ensure 
compliance with procurement rules and regulations.

Failure to meet corporate 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources

Risk/ 
Compliance M   20  Assurance

 29

Highways Incentive Funding 2020/21
Evaluate the evidence supporting the annual self-
assessment questionnaire which supports the claim 
for funding for the period 2015/16-2020/21 
(deadline 31 January)

Risk of funding being 
reduced on a percentage 
scale over the 6 year 
duration of the funding.

Risk/ 
Compliance L    4 Core

 30
External Grant Funding Certifications
Certify conditions in grant award letter have been 
complied with, including:
 - Local Growth Fund

Inappropriate claims which 
may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance

L  5 5  Core

 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION 
TECHNOLOGY         

 31

Public Services Network
Evaluate processes and controls in place to support 
the submission of the Annual Code of Connection 
thereby ensuring connectivity with key government 
systems.

Compliance with key 
areas of legislation and 
regulation are 
compromised which may 
result in loss of 
connectivity with key 
government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance H   5  Core

P
age 140



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 32

Customer Transformation Programme
Evaluate the progress made with the Programme 
and ensure capital spend and benefits realisation 
are in line with the agreed plan and are being 
appropriately monitored and reported.

Failure to deliver the 
expected benefits of this 
programme could lead to 
costs not being reduced in 
line with expectations and 
services not being able to 
deliver a more holistic 
service provision to 
customers.

Risk M    10 Assurance

 33

IT Disaster Recovery
Perform further follow up audit to confirm previously 
agreed actions in relation to IT disaster recovery are 
now fully embedded and incorporate developments 
such as the move to the Cloud.

Loss of data and services 
in the event of a serious 
incident occurring.

Risk H    10 Assurance

 34
IT Asset Management
Evaluate processes and controls supporting the 
management and physical control of IT assets.

Failure to manage assets 
leading to financial loss Risk M 15    Assurance

 35
Cyber Security
Evaluate the effectiveness of processes and 
controls over IT security including follow up of the 
2019/20 audit recommendations. 

Security breach may lead 
to loss of operations, 
financial loss, sensitive 
data being compromised 
or reputational damage

Risk H 10    Assurance

P
age 141



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 36

Information Governance/ GDPR
Annual audit assurance to confirm compliance with 
data protection and data security legislation and 
relevant policies and guidelines, focusing on 
thematic reviews to confirm compliance with the 
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

Compliance with key 
areas of legislation and 
regulation are 
compromised which may 
result in financial penalties 
or loss of connectivity with 
key government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance H  20  Core

 ECONOMY         

 37

Capital Projects
Evaluate the governance, processes and controls 
supporting key capital projects and ensure 
compliance with procurement rules and regulations.

Failure to meet corporate 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources

Risk/ 
Compliance M 20    Assurance

 38

Commercial and Investment Properties
Evaluate the processes and controls over the 
management of commercial and investment 
properties to ensure an appropriate return is being 
generated from the assets and properly accounted 
for.

Failure to achieve 
objectives due to 
inappropriate or ineffective 
use of funds.

Risk M    15 Assurance

P
age 142



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 RESOURCES         

 39

Submission of Pension Data
Evaluate new processes to submit pension data to 
the Greater Manchester Pension Fund following the 
move from annual to monthly submissions via the 
iConnect system to confirm accuracy and 
completeness. 

Inaccurate returns are 
submitted. Compliance L 15    Core

 40

Pensions
Evaluate the application of policies relating to the 
granting of pensions for early retirement and for 
reasons of ill health and ensure they are compliant 
and any discretions are being applied on a 
reasonable and consistent basis.

Lack of compliance may 
lead to excessive costs 
being incurred.

Risk/ 
Compliance M   15  Assurance

 41
Financial Assessments (Adult Care)
Ensure processes and controls supporting financial 
assessments adhere to policies and procedures.

Inappropriate 
assessments leading to 
financial loss

Risk M  15   Assurance

 42

Council Tax/ Business Rates
Review procedures and controls supporting the 
billing and collection of council tax and business 
rates, focusing on the processing of refunds to 
customers. 

Fraud and financial loss

Risk/ 
Compliance 

(material 
system)

M    15 Core

P
age 143



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 43

Procurement
Evaluate the effectiveness of governance and 
controls within the procurement processes across 
the STAR hub, working alongside Trafford, 
Stockport and Tameside Internal Audit services, 
with a focus on areas such as:
 - Spend monitoring (Rochdale)
 - Contract management (Stockport)
 - Social value delivery (Trafford)
 - Compliance with revised Contract Procedure 
Rules 

Ineffective systems 
resulting in reduced 
efficiency, additional costs 
and the risk of challenge 
to procurement decisions

Risk/ 
compliance M 5 15 5 5 Core

 44

Treasury Management
Ensure processes and controls over the treasury 
management function are effective and in line with 
agreed standards and guidance, including the Code 
of Practice.

Significant Council bank 
balances are not secure or 
are misappropriated.

Risk 
(material 
system)

M  12   Core

 45

Operating Expenditure/ Creditors
Evaluate the effectiveness of controls over the 
processing and recording of operating expenses. As 
part of this, follow up on anomalies identified by the 
fraud module within AP Forensics data interrogation 
software to confirm the integrity of relevant 
transactions and duplicate payments arising from 
invoices and payment requests for the same 
services.

Inappropriate expenditure 
leading to fraud and 
financial loss

Risk 
(material 
system)

M   20  Core

 46

Priority Account Service
Evaluate the effectiveness of processes and 
controls which facilitate the early repayment of 
suppliers in order to generate rebates for the 
Council.

Non-compliance with 
agreed terms may result in 
anticipated financial 
benefits not being realised 
by the Council.

Risk/ 
Compliance 

(material 
system)

M   15  Core 

P
age 144



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 47

Purchase cards
Evaluate controls over and usage of purchase cards 
to ensure compliance with guidance, including 
lodged purchase cards within school/ town hall 
kitchens. 

Inappropriate use of cards 
leading to fraud or 
financial loss

Risk/ 
Compliance L    10 Core

 48

Agency staff
Review the use of agency staff across the Authority 
with a particular focus on longer term arrangements 
to ensure value for money is being achieved. 
Ensure compliance with agreed policies, Financial 
Regulations and HMRC regulations.

Inappropriate use of 
agency staff may result in 
additional cost pressures 
and impairment of value 
for money

Assurance M  20   Assurance

 49
Payroll
Review the application of holiday pay rates and 
percentages to ensure compliance with agreed 
policy. 

Payments are not 
accurate potentially 
leading to financial loss 

Risk 
(material 
system)

M  15   Core

 50
Coordination and support for key policies
Champion roles relating to business continuity, 
health and safety and equality.

 Compliance N/A 4 4 4 4 Assurance

 GOVERNANCE         

 51

Support for and evaluation of Governance 
structure
Provide assurance on the effectiveness of the 
governance structure and input and challenge on 
relevant initiatives, including attendance and 
support for Governance Board.

Ineffective decision 
making leading to strategic 
objectives not being met.

Risk M 5 5 5 5 Core

P
age 145



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 52
Annual Governance Statement
Evaluation of the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS) to ensure it aligns with knowledge and 
understanding of structures and processes in place.

Assurance for Members Risk H 8 2   Core

 53
Committee support and reporting
Attendance, reporting, training and support for Audit 
and Governance Committee and responding to 
issues raised by Members

Members do not get 
adequate information and 
support to ensure effective 
governance.

Risk H 8 8 8 8 Core

 54

Risk and Insurance Management
Support, challenge and evaluate the embedding of 
risk management both corporately and within all 
Service areas. Management of the Insurance 
function.

Failure to achieve 
objectives due to 
appropriate controls not 
being identified or 
implemented

Risk M 5 5 5 5 Core

 55

Ethical Governance
Evaluate the effectiveness of the processes 
supporting compliance with ethical governance 
principles. 

Inadequate processes 
may result in challenges to 
processes and decisions 
and reputational damage

Risk/ 
Compliance L    15 Assurance/ 

Compliance

 FRAUD         

 56

Managing the risk of fraud
Undertake pro-active audit testing to identify any 
areas of potential fraud and ensure the Council’s 
overall approach to fraud supports the zero-
tolerance culture through policy development and 
corporate fraud responses. Also support provided to 
the Counter Fraud Team.

Appropriate resource is 
not directed towards 
minimising the risk of fraud 
occurring.

Risk M 6 6 6 6 Core

P
age 146



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 57
National Fraud Initiative
Manage and co-ordinate the NFI including 
additional checks on data matches where 
appropriate.

Statutory requirements are 
not complied with. Compliance M 4 4 4 4 Core

 OTHER         

 58 Audit planning and liaison    2 2 2 10  

 59 Completion of audits from 2019/20 – planned 
and unplanned    50     

 60
External traded services
Perform audits of School Fund Accounts and grant 
certifications to generate external income for the 
Service.

   8 8 8 8  

61 Follow up of audit recommendations to ensure 
completed    9 9 9 9  

 TOTAL FOR PLANNED AUDIT WORK    291 280 271 276  

 CONTINGENCY FOR UNPLANNED WORK         

62
Audit resource set aside to respond to new and 
emerging risks and issues identified during the 
year plus management requests and ad hoc 
work

   25 25 25 25  

P
age 147



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

63
Audit resource set aside to respond to 
suspected fraud issues, whistleblowing 
referrals or other investigations that may be 
requested.

   25 25 25 25  

 TOTAL    341 330 321 326  

P
age 148



Appendix B                                Internal Audit Team Structure at as 1 April 2020

    

Head of Internal Audit 

 Audit Manager  Audit Manager

Auditor

(Term time 
only)

Senior 
Auditor

Senior 
Auditor

Auditor 

Auditor

P
age 149



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 9 March 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Martin Nixon
Public/Private Document Public

Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 
during Quarter 3 of the 2019/20 year.

Updates on project plans to implement improvements to the Pentana software 
system and the latest developments on management of priority risks under 
Integrated Health and Social Care services are included.

The Insurance Team achieved a claims cost mitigation figure of £252,661.78 
for the claims closed in the quarter. Cyber Insurance has been procured for 
the Council to provide cover for legal liability, costs and response services 
required in the unlikely event of a data breach incident.

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of Members to confirm the level of assurance 
provided through the management of risk and insurance services.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and oversight of governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management and Insurance Team coverage during the 2019/20 year for all 
Council Services.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Corporate Risk Register

The Leadership Team continue to proactively manage risks listed under the 
Corporate risk register. The Corporate risk register can be viewed under 
Appendix 1.

Page 150

Agenda Item 11



5.

5.1

5.2

Service Risk Management

Improvements Planned to the Pentana Risk Management System

The Pentana Risk ICT system, used for the monitoring of performance and risk 
outcomes across the Council and CCG, was launched on 1st July 2019.

Risk data was migrated to Pentana and all risk updates and reviews have been 
carried out on the system following the launch last year. A project plan has 
been agreed with the supplier to implement improvements to the handling of 
risk controls. The changes are planned to be completed by start of April 2020 
which will deliver enhancements to on-screen dashboards and reporting 
capabilities.

Integrated Care Risk Management

The project management team (PMO) of the Heywood Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) coordinated updates to the 
risk registers of the Integrated health and social care projects during Q3.

CCG reported four risks having residual scores of 16 or more in Q2. All four of 
these are no longer ranked as residual red scores. Three of these risks related 
to the potential failure to deliver deflections. Developments within the Planned 
Care, Urgent Care and Mental Health strategic objectives have led to the 
decision to close the risks, as they no longer reflect the current risk situation. 
Reduced scoring for finance risks is also supported by the development of 
savings programmes in the service areas concerned. 

The residual score for the overriding, strategic finance risk has reduced 
because the CCG and the Council have agreed arrangements to close the 
pooled fund gap for 2019/20.

During 2019/20 the Health & Social Care (H&SC) pooled fund experienced 
significant pressure resulting in both the Council and CCG making additional 
in-year contributions. The pressure on the H&SC pool budget as at the end of 
December 2019 was £0.8m, however the Council has set aside resources to 
fund this gap at year end if the gap remains, with a corresponding reduction to 
the Council’s contribution in 2020/21. Further work is underway to address this 
gap in 2019/20.

Page 151



5.3

6

6.1

Other Integrated Care risks for consideration -
Service Risk Title Residual 

Score

Primary 
Care

Risk that not enough GPs in the borough to deliver 
primary health care, causing increased waiting times 
and reduces timely access to care for the HMR 
population.
Controls: Primary Care Academy commissioned to 
achieve sustainable and competent workforce by 2021.

9

CCG

Failure to achieve the main NHS Constitution 
performance measures will impact upon HMR CCG 
finances, reputation and patient outcomes
Controls: Performance monitoring carried out at 
monthly meetings with commissioners and 
transformation work to produce upturn against 
targets.

9

Risk Management Results

There are currently 2 Red risks within the risk registers of RBC Services’ to 
report -

Ref Service Risk Title Residual 
Score

CSDR006
Children’s 
Services 
(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts 
the financial position of the Service and 
its ability to provide services

16

CSCR002 Children’s 
Social Care

Demand for a Children’s Social Care 
Service continues to increase, leading to 
failure to manage within budget

16

Please note that variations in RAG risk scores should not be viewed purely as 
a reflection of the effectiveness of risk control activity - risk scoring is also 
influenced by the severity of risks associated with the different Services and 
their capacity to mitigate. Further details regarding the factors considered 
when scoring the risks and the mitigation actions being implemented are 
provided under Appendix 2.

Insurance Team

Performance
A summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from October 2019 
to December 2019 is set out below.

The team received a total of 108 new claims notifications during quarter 3. This 
total can be divided between insurance classes – Highways (50), Motor (30), 

Page 152



6.2

Other Public Liability (16), Employer’s Liability (4), Others (8). This figure is an 
increase in comparison to the 92 notifications received during Q3 2018/19.

A total of 73 claims were closed by the team during quarter 2. This figure can 
be divided between the insurance classes - Highways (54), Motor (11), Other 
Public Liability (8), Employer’s Liability (0). Closed claims will largely not be the 
same incidents as the newly notified claims referred to above. The claims 
handling process can run over a period of months or years, and therefore the 
team are working on a combination of new and existing cases.

The claims cost mitigation figures displayed in the table below are calculated 
by subtracting the final settled amounts for closed claims against the highest 
reserve amounts for the same losses during the handling of the claims. These 
statistics are a useful measure of the level of challenge put forward by the 
Insurance Team during their investigations, liaison with Council Services, and 
joint work with solicitors to defend against legal proceedings.

Claims Cost Mitigation Table for 2019/20 Q3

Month Claims Closed Cost 
Mitigation

Oct 31 £112,341.14

Nov 23 £101,019.92

Dec 19 £39,300.72

Total 73 £252,661.78

The table shows that the Insurance Team achieved a total cost mitigation of 
£252,661.78 on settled claims costs during Q3. However it should be noted 
that December claims data from previous insurers Zurich was unavailable 
when this report was submitted and therefore the total claims cost mitigation 
figure is understated. The largest single cost mitigation in the quarter was 
made due to a strong ‘section 58’ defence against a Highways trip incident. 
Investigations by the Insurance team provided evidence that adequate road 
maintenance procedures had been followed prior to this particular incident. 

Cyber Insurance Cover

The Insurance team has successfully procured Cyber Insurance cover to 
provide cover for the costs, legal liability or response services required in the 
unlikely event of a future data breach or cyber-attack.

Cyber insurance cover increases the Authority’s financial security, in addition 
to the already extensive information governance and digital security measures 
in place to protect data records.

Page 153



6.3

7

Support Provided to ‘Friends of’ Groups to Insure Events 

The Insurance team contributed to a Council presentation to Rochdale ‘Friends 
of’ groups on 17th December 2020 with the intention to provide guidance and 
support on placement of insurance cover for their events.

Our insurers are unable to provide liability insurance cover to community 
groups outside of Council control due to our lack of insurable interest in the 
organisation of the events. Therefore the groups have been informed they 
must place their own Public Liability cover for any future events. Confirmation 
that insurance cover exists will be a requirement of any application to the RBC 
Events team to use Council land or premises in the future. Guidance was 
provided to those at the meeting on the possible risks associated with their 
activities, and the types of insurance necessary to provide cover.

It should be noted that the RBC Insurance team are not authorised to provide 
insurance advice to third parties and it was strongly recommended to the 
groups involved that they obtain advice from qualified insurance brokers.

Priorities for the Next Quarter

 Reissue of Rochdale Risk Management Policy
 Place insurance cover for the Rochdale Retail development effective from 

handover from contractors in April.
 Establish format of Insurance Cost by Service reports to Leadership Team.

Costs and Budget Summary

8. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council will 
be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. 

9.

Consultation

10. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 
agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Page 154



Background Papers Place of Inspection

None applicable

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 155



Appendix 1 24 February 2020

Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

David Wilcock David Wilcock Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit   David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 

P
age 156



the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed annually, communicated and understood    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
annually   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2018/19 and 2019/20 leading to a failure 
in legal duty (Strategic) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Julie Murphy Julie Murphy Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

30 Apr 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 20

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and Members 
working together)   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

P
age 157



 *    CRR3010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 24 Jun 15

CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Julie Murphy Julie Murphy Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Apr 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers and Members 
working together)   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational)

P
age 158



Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Neil Thornton Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood   Michael Garraway Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority with other 
Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution 
issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 1 Mar 20

CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

P
age 159



John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums.

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with Greater Manchester authorities to monitor and mitigate 
risks    

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    The partnership Consequence Management Group (CMG) exists to provide early 
identification and intervention on community tensions and develop positive community 
cohesion and diversionary activities to mitigate risks of escalation in tension. The CMG to 
inform and take direction from RBC and Partners command structure.

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members and Community 
Representatives   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in 
schools

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

P
age 160



CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sally McIvor Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge   Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated  

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated   Peter Gregory Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently   Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 25 Nov 19

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 25 Nov 19

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

P
age 161



P
age 162



Q3 2019/20 High-Scoring Service Risks
Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 

Score

CSDR006 Children’s Services 
(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts the financial position of the 
Service and its ability to provide services Gail Hopper 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score? Locally, predicted pressures are being experienced as a result of an increase in demand for children’s social care services generally. 
Since April 2019 there has been a slight bucking the regional trend as figures start to stabilise; however key indicators of the volume of work with very vulnerable children and their 
families remain high. There has been a small but significant reduction in the number of children subject to a child protection plan, care proceedings being initiated and the number of 
children cared for (has reduced by over thirty by the end of Quarter 3). However, numbers remain high compared with statistical neighbours. There continues to be a continuing increase 
in demand for children with special educational needs and / or disabilities and unaccompanied asylum seeking children. This reflects the picture both regionally and nationally.

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk? A Business Case for increased resources in line with areas of increased demand in children’s social care has 
been agreed; this has been worked upon with Finance colleagues and has been considered at informal Cabinet, the ICB and has now been presented to Cabinet for a formal decision. A 
five year sustainability strategy has also been developed, with key components to increase placement sufficiency through innovation and market management.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The Senior Leadership Team regularly considers budget pressures collectively and in their separate management 
meetings. There are monthly meetings with the Chief Executive, the S151 Officer and Director of Resources, as well as regular meetings with the Leader and Portfolio Holder. This 
residual risk will be reviewed again at the end of Q3. Reduction in the risk score is dependent on the outcome of the Government Spending Review.

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score

CSCR002 Children’s Services Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service continues to increases, 
leading to failure to manage within budget Julia Hassall 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  ?  The growing child population in borough and growing demand is causing increased budget pressures in children’s social care and in 
the additional needs service (SEND). This reflects similar demands across the country. 91% of children’s services budgets overspent nationally in 2018/19. (Rochdale did not overspend 
last year).

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk? A five year sustainability strategy has been developed by reviewing and mapping levels of need and 
implications; reviewing the research and evidence base of what works; reviewing all children in external placements and working up a detailed investment strategy. This involves a 
Greater Manchester approach to implementing innovation programmes that have been successful elsewhere in the country. Progress is being made in Rochdale to develop these 
approaches, but will take time to deliver impact. One of the areas we cannot control is the inward migration, see below. The Family Service Model (FSM) and approach has been 
developed to manage demand through co-ordinated multi-agency early help.  The FSM has been developed as part of the transformation programme and predicted deflections and 
mainstreaming have not been realised to date. Additional resource has been allocated in line with demand in Children’s Social Care.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The sustainability strategy will over time support greater likelihood of managing demand within the designated budget. 
What the service is unable to predict is those demands emerging from children new to the authority. In the period between September and December almost 500 children new to the 
country and to the borough required school places – what is not known about these children is what level of social care needs they may present moving forward. These increases have 
been experienced in the borough over the last 3 years, but the 18/19 figures were much higher than in previous years (50% increase).

P
age 163


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Council Size Report for the Electoral Review of Rochdale
	Append. 1 for Council Size Report for the Electoral Review of Rochdale
	Append. 2 for Council Size Report for the Electoral Review of Rochdale
	Append. 3 for Council Size Report for the Electoral Review of Rochdale
	Append. 4 for Council Size Report for the Electoral Review of Rochdale

	7 External Audit Strategy Memorandum 2020
	8 External Audit Progress Report
	9 Internal Audit Quarter 3 Report 2019/20
	10 Internal Audit Plan 2020/21
	Append. 1 for Internal Audit Plan 2020/21
	Append. 2 for Internal Audit Plan 2020/21

	11 Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2019/20
	Append. 2 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2019/20


